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COUNT 1 of 41

The Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do herchy
charge and accuse:

DONALD JOHN TRUMP,
RUDOLPH WILL1AM LOUIS GIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN,
MARK RANDALL MEADOWS,
KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRQ,
JEFFREY ROSSERT CLARK,
JENNA LYNN ELLIS,

RAY STALLINGS SMITH III,
ROBERT DAVID CHEELLY,
MICHAEL A. ROMAN,

DAVID JAMES SHAFER,
SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL,
STEFHEN CLIFFGARD LEE,
HARRISON WILL1AM PRESCOTT FLOYD,
TREYIAN C. KUTTI,

SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and
MISTY HAMPTON

with the offense of VIOLATION OF THE GEORGIA RICO (RACKETEER
INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS) ACT, 0.C.G.A. § 16-14-4(c), for the
said accused, individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a erime, and together
with unindicted co-conspirators, in the State of Georgia and County of Fulton, ou and between
the 4th day of November 2020 and the 15th day of September 2022, whilc associated with an
enterprise, unlawfully conspired and endeavored fo conduct and participate in, directly and
indirectly, such enterprise through a paticrn of racketeering activity in violation of O.C.GLAL §
16-14-4(h), as described below and incorporated by reference as if fully st forth herein, contrary
to ihe laws of said State, the good order, peace, and dignity thercof;
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INTRODUCTION

Defendant Donald John Trump lost the United Staws presidential election held on
MNovember 3, 2020, One of the states he lost was Georgia, Trump and the other Defendants
charged in this Indictment refused to accept that Trump lost, and they knowingly and wallfully
joined a conspiracy (o unlawfully change the outeome of the election in favor of Trump. That
conspiracy contained a commeon plan and purpese to comumit hwo or more acts of racketeering

activity in Iulton County, Georgia, elsewhere in the State of Georgia, and in other stales,
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THE ENTERPRISE

At all times relevant to this Count of the indictment, the Defendants, as well as others not
named as defendants, unlawfully conspired and endeavored to conduct and paficipate in a
criminal enterprisc in Fulton County, Georgia, and clsewhere. Defendants Donald John Trump,
Rudolph William Louis Giuliani, John Charles Castman, Mark Randall Mcadows, Ketmeth John
Chescbro, Jelfrey Bossert Clark, Jenna Lynn Lllis, Ray Slallings Smath ill, Robert David
Cheeley, Michael A. Roman, David James Shafer, Shawn Micah Tresher Still, Stephen Cliffgard
Lce, lammison William Prescott Floyd, Trevian C. Kutti, Sidney Katherine Powell, Cathleen
Alston Latham, Scoft Grahaun Hall, Misty Hamploty, unindieted co-gcongpirators Individual |
through Individual 30, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, constituted a criminal
erganization whose members and associales engaged in various related eriminal activities
including, but not limited to, false staternents and writings, umpersonating a public officer,
forgery, filimg false documents, influencing witnesses, computer theli, computer trespass,
compurer invasion of privacy, conspiracy to defraud the state, acts involving thefl, and perjury.

‘This criminal erganization constituted an enterprise ns that lerm is defined in O.C.GA. §
16-14-3(3), that is, a group of individuals associated in fact. The Defendants and other members
and associates of the enterprise had connections and relationships with one anolher and with the
enterprise. The enterprise constituled an angoing ompanization whose members and associates
functioned as a continuing unit for a commen purpose of achieving the objectives of the
enterprise, The enterprise operated in Fulten County, Georgia, clsewhere in the Siate of Georgia,
in other states, including, but not limited to, Arizona, Michigan, Nevada, New Mexico,
Mennsylvania, and Wisconsin, and in the District of Columbia. The enterprise operated for a

peried of time sufficient to permil its members and associates to pursue its objectives.
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MANNER AND METHODS OF THE ENTERIPRISE

The manner and metheds used by the Defendants and other members and associates of

the enterprisc (o furiher the goals of the enterprise and Lo achieve its purposes included, hul were
not limited to, the following:

1. False Statements to and Solicitation of Seate Legislatures

Members of the enterprise, including several of the Defendants, appeared at hearings in
Fuiton County, Georgia, before members of the Geonzia General Assembly on December 3,
2020, December 10, 2020, and DNDecember 30, 2020, At these hearings, members of the enterprise
made false statements concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential election. The
purpose of these false stalements was to persuade Georzia legislators to reject lawful electoral
votes cast by the duly elected and qualificd presidential eleclors from Gegrgia. Members of the
enterprise cortuptly solictted Georgia legisiators instead to unlawfully appaint their own
presidential electors for the parpose of casting ¢lectoral votes for Donald Teump. Members of the
enierprise also made false statements to slate legislators during hearings and meetings in
Arzons, Michigan, and Pennsylvania in November and December 2020 to persuade legislators
in those stales w unlawfully appotiat their own presidential electors.

2, Falsc Statements to and Solivitation of High-Ranking State Officials

Members of the enterpiise. including several of the Defendants, made false statements in
Fulton County and elsewhers in the State of Georgia to Georgia officials, inchiding the
(iovemor, the Secretary of State, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. Members of
the enwerprise also comuptly solicited Georgia officials, inciuding the Secretary of Stale and the
Speaker of the House of Represcnlatives, to violate their oaths to the Georgia Constitution and to

the United States Constitution by unlawiully changing (he outcome of the Novemnber 3, 2020,
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presidential election in Georgia in favor of Donald Trump. Members of the enterprise alse made
false stalements to and solicited state officials in Arizona, Michigan, and Pennsylvania.

3. Creation and Distribution of False Llectorzl College Documents

Members of the cuicrprise, including several of the Defendants, created false Flectoral
College documnents and recruited individuals to convene and cast false Llectoral College votes at
the Georgia State Capitol, in Fulton County, on December 14, 2021, Afer the false Clectonl
College votes were cast, members of the enterprise ransmitted the votes to the President of the
United Sutes Senaie, the Archivist of the Unued States, the Georgla Secretary qf State, and the
Chief Judge of the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgila. The false
documents were intended {o disrupt and delay the joint session of Congress on January 6, 2021,
i order o unlawfully change the oulconie of the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
favor of Donald Trump. Similar schemes were executed by members of the enterprise in Arizona,
Michigan, Nevada, New Mexico, Pennsylvania, and Wisconsin,

4. Harassmest and Intimidation of Fulton County Election YWorker Ruby Freeman

Members of the enterprise, including several of the Defendants, fulsely accused Fullon
County election worker Kuby Freeman of committing election cnimes in Fulten County, Georgia.
These false accusations were repeated (0 Georzia legislators and other Georgia olficials inan
elfort 1o persuade them to unlawfully change the oulcome of the November 3, 2020, presidential
gleclion in favor of Donald Trump. In furtherance of this scheme, members of the enterprise
traveled from out of state to harass Freeman, intimidate her, and solicit her to falsely confess to

election ¢rimes that she did not commit.
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5. Solicitation of High-Ranking United States Department of Justice OfTicials

Members of the enterprise, including several of the Defendants, corruptly selicited high-
ranking United States Depariment of Justice afficials to make false statements to government
plficials in Fulton County, Georpia, including the Governor, the Speaker of the House of
Represenlatives, and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate. In one instance, Donald Trump
slated to the Acling United Stales Atomey General, “Just say that the election was corrupt, and
leave the rest to me and the Republican congressmen.™

6. Solicitation of the Vice President of the United States

Members of the enterprize, including several of the Defendants, cormuptly soticited the
Vice President of the United States to violate the United States Constitution and federal law by
unlawfully rejecting Flectaral Colicge votes cast in Fulton County, Georgia, by the duly elecied
and qualified presidential clcctn.rs from Georgia. Members of the enterprise also corruptly
sulicited the Vice President to refect votes cast by the duly elected and qualified presidential
electors from several other states.

7. Unlawful Breach of Election Equipment in Georgia and Elscwhere

Members of the enterprise, including several of the Defendants, comuptly conspired in
Fulton County, Georgia, and elscwhere to unlawfully access secure voting equipment and voter
data. In Georgia, members of the enterprise stole dala, including ballot images, voting equipmeni
soltware, and personal voter information. The stolen data was then disiributed to other members

of the enterprise, including members in other states.
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§.  Obstructive Acts in Furtherance of the Conspiracy and the Cover Up

Members of the enterprise, including scveral of the Defendants, Tiled false documents,
made false statements to governnient investigators, and committed perjury in judicial
proceedings in Fulton County, Georgig, and elsewhere in tfurtherance of and to cover up the

conspiracy.
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ACTS OF RACKETEERING ACTIVITY AND
OYERT ACTS IN FURTHERANCE OF THE CONSPIRACY

As pari of and on behalf of the criminal enterprise deiailed above, ihe Defendanis and
other members and associates of the enterprise commited oven acts to effcet the objectives of

the enterprise, including but nat limiled to:
Act 1.

On or about the 4th day of Movember 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP made a
nationally televised speceh falsely declaring victory in the 2020 presidential election.
Approximalcly four days earlier, on or about Octaber 31, 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP
discussed a drafi speech with unindicted co-conspirator Individual 1, whose identity i1s known to
the Grand Jury, Lthat falsely declared victory and falsely claimed voter fraud, The speech was an
overt acl in furtherance of the conspircy.

At 2.

On or about the 15th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI placed a telephone call to unindicted co-conspirator Individual 2, whose identity is
known to the Grand Jury, and left an approximately 83-second-long veicemail message for
unindicted co-vonspirator Individual 2 making slatements conceming fraud in the November 3,
2020, election in Fulton County, Georgia. This tclephone call was an overl act in furtherance of
the conspiracy,

Act 2,

On or about the 19th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LO1S
GIULIANIL, JENNA LYNN ELLIS, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, and unindicted co-
conspiralor Individual 3, whose identity 18 known to the Grand Jury, appeared at a press
conference at the Republican National Comomittes Headquarters on behalf of DONALD JOHN
TRUMP and Donald J. Trump for President, Ine. (the “Trump Campaign™) and made false
statements concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgla and
elsewhere. These were overl acts in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 4.

On or about the 20th day of November 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER sent an e-mail
to unindicted co-conspirator Individual 4, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, and other
individuals. In the e-mail, DAVID JAMES SHAFER stated that SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, a
Georgia bail bondsman, “has been looking into the clection on behalf of the President at the
request of David Bossie™ and asked unindicted co-conspirater Individual 4 to exchange contact
information with SCOTT GRAIIAM HALL and to “help him as needed.” This was an overt act
in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 5,

On or about the 20th day of November 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and MARK
RANDALL MEADOWS met with hMajority Leader of the Michigan Senate Michael Shirkey,
Specaker of the Michigan House of Representatives Lee Chatfield, and other Michigan legislators
in the Oval OfTice at the White House, and DONALD .JOHN TRUMP made false statements
concemning frand in the November 3, 2020, presidential cleetion in Michigan. RUDOLPH
WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI joincd the meeting by telephone. This meeting was an overt act
int furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 6.

On or about the 21st day of November 2020, MARK RANDALL MEADOWS sent a
text message to United States Representative Scott Perry from Pennsylvaniz and stated, “Can
vou send me the number for the speaker and the leader of PA J.egislature. POTUS wants to chat
with them.”™ This was an overl act in fertherance of the conspiracy.

Act 7.

On or about the 22nd day of November 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and
RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULITANI placed a telephone call to Speaker of the Arizona
House of Representatives Russell “Rusty” Bowers, During the telephone call, RUDOLPH
WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI made [alse statements conceming fraud in the November 3,
2020, presidential clection in Arizona and solicited, requested, and impoertuned Bowers o
unlawfully appoint presidential electors from Arizona. Bowers deelined and later testified to the
United States [ouse of Representatives Select Committee to Investigate the January 6th Attack
on the United States Capitol that he told DONALD JOHN TRUMP, “[ would not brepk my
oath.” The false statements and soliciiations were overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 8.

On or aboot the 25th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI and JENNA LYNN ELLIS appeared, spoke. and presented witnesses at a meeting
of Pennsylvaniz legislatars in Gettysburg, Pennsylvanta. During the meeting, RUDOLFH
WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI made false statements concerning fraud in the November 3,
2020, presidential clection in Pennsylvania and solicited, requested, and importuned the
Pennsylvania legislators present at the meeting to unlawfully appoint presidential clectors from
Pennsylvania, Dunng the mecting, JENNA LYNN ELLIS solicited, requested, and imporiwned
the Pennsylvania legislalors present at the meeting to unlawtully appoint presidential electors
from Tennsylvania. DONALD JOHN TRUMP joincd the meeting by telephone, made false
stalements conceming fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential cleetion in Pennsylvania, and
solicited, requesied, and importuned the Pennsylvama legislators present at the meeting to
unlawfully appoint presidential clectors from Pennsylvama. These were overl acts in funtherance

of the conspiracy.
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Act 9,

Cn or about the 25th day of November 2020, immediately afler the meeting of
Pennsylvania legislators in Gettysburg, Pennsylvania, where RUDQLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIUILIAN]D and JENNA LYNN ELLIS appeared, spoke, and prescnted witnesses, DONALD
JOHN TRUMP invited a proup of the Pennsylvania lepislators and others to meet with bam at
the While liouse. Later that day, DONALD JOHN TRUMP, MARK RANDALL
MEADOWS, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI, JENNA LYNN ELLIS and
unindicted co-conspirators Individual 5 and Individual 6, whose identitics are known to the
Grand Jury, met with the group of Pennsylvania legislators at the White lHouse and discussed
holding a special session of the Pennsylvania General Asscmbly. Thesc were overd acls in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 10

On or about the 264h day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM I.OUIS
GIULIANT and JENNA LYNN ELLIS piaced a telephone call to Speaker of the Pennsylvania
Housc of Representatives Bryan Cutler and left Cudler a voicemail message for the purpose of
soliciting, requesting, and importuning him to unlawtully appoint presidential clectors from
Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in furtherance ot the conspiracy.

Act 11,

(Jn or about the 26th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULJIANTI placed a telephone call to President Pro Tempore of the Pennsylvania Scnate Jacob
“Jake™ Corman for the purpese of seliciting, requesting, and importuning Corman to unlawfully
appoint presidential clectors from Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in furtherance of the
conspiracy.

Aet 12,

(In or about the 27th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI and JENNA LYNN ELILLS placed a telephone call to Speaker of the Pennsylvania
House of Representatives Bryan Cutler and left Culler a voicemail message for the purpose of
soliciting, requesting, and importuning him to unlawfully appoint presidential clectors from
Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 12,

On or about the 27th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANS and JENNA LYNN ELLIS placed a telephone call to President Pro Tempore of the
Pennsylvania Scnate Jake Corman for the purpose of soliciting, requesting, and imporuning
Corman to unlawlully appoint presidential clectors from Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in
fudherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 14,

On or about the 27th day of November 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMTP placcd a
telephone call to President Pro Tempore of the Pennsylvania Senate Jake Corman for the purpose
of soliciting, requesting, and imporiuning Corman to unlawfully appomt presidential elcetors
from Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 15.

On or about the 28th day of Novemher 2020, RUDOLPH WILLLAM LOUIS
GIULIANI placed a telephone call to Speaker of the P’ennsylvania House of Representaiives
Bryan Cutler and lefi Cutler a voicemail message for the purpose of soliciting, requesting, and
importuning him to unlawfully appoint presidential electors from Pennsylvania. This was an
overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 16,

On or about the 29th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI placed a lelephone call io Speaker of the Pennsylvania [fouse of Representatives
Bryan Cusier and lefi Culler a voicemail message for the purposc of soliciting, requesting, and
imporiuning lum to unlawfully appoint presidential electors from Pennsylvania. This was an
overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 17.

"~ On or about the 30th day of November 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI and JENNA LYNN ELLIS appeared, spoke, and presented witnesses at a meeting
of Arizona legislators in Phoenix, Arizona. Unindicted co-conspiralors Individual 5 and
Individual 6, whose identities arg known to the Grand Jury, were also present. During the
meeting, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULTANI made false statements coneerning fraud
in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Arizona and solicited, requested, and
importuned the Arizona legislators present at the meeting to unlawtully appoint presidential
clectors from Arizona. During the meeting, JENNA LYNN ELLIS solicited, requested, and
imporiuned the Arirona legislators present at the mesting to unlawfully appoint presideatial
clectors from Arizona, DONALD JOHN TRUMP joined the meeting by telephone and made
false slatements concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Adzona.
These were overl acts i furtherance of the conspiracy,

Act 18,

On or about 1he 30th day of November 2020, MICIHAEL A. ROMAN instructed
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 7, whose idenlity is known to the Grand Jury, to coordinale
with individuals associated with the Trump Campaign to conlact slate legisiators in Georpia and
elsewhere on behalf of DONALD JOHN TRUMP and to encourage them to unlawfully appoint
presidential electors from their respective states. This was an overt act in furtheranee of he

Cofspiracy.
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Act 19,

On or between the 1st day of December 2020 and the 31st day of December 2024,
DONALD JOHN TRUMFE and MARK RANDALL MEADOWS met with John MoEntee and
requested that McCntee prepare a memerandum outlinmg a sieatepy for disrupting and delaying
the joint session of Congress on January 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for counting voles
cast by the duly elected and qualified presidential electors from Georgia and the other states, The
stralegy included having Vice President Michael R, “Mike™ Pence count only hatf of the electoral
votes from cerain slates and then return the remaining clecloral votes o siate legislatures, The
request was an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 20,

On or aboul the 1st day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANT and JENNA LYNN ELLIS met with Speaker of the Arizona House of
Representatives Rusty Bowers, President of the Arizona Senate Karga Fann, and other Arizona
legislators in Phoenix, Arzona. Unindicted co-conspirator Individual 5, whose identity is knovwm
to the Grand Jury, was also present. During the meeting. RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI madec talse statements concerning frawd in the November 3, 2020, presidential
election in Arizona and solicited, requested, and importuncd the legislators present Lo call a
speeial session of the Arizona State Legislature. These were overt acts in furlherance of the
COnSpLracy.

Aot 21,

On or about the 2nd day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI and JENNA LYNN ELLIS appeared, spoke, and presented witnesses at a meeting
of the Michigan House of Representatives Oversight Committee. During the meeting,
RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUILS GIULTANT made false statements concerning fraud in the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Michigan and soliciled, requesied, and imporiuned
the Micbigan legislators present at the meeting to unlawfully appoiat presidential ¢lectors from
Michigan. During the meeting, JENNA LYNN ELLIS solicited, roquested, and imporioned the
Michigan legislators present at the meeting to unlawfully appoint presidential electors from
Michigan. These were oven acts in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 22,
On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused 1o be

tweeled from the Twitter account {RealDonald Trump, “Georgia hearings now on (@OANN.
Amazing!™ This was an overt act in funtherance of the conspiracy.

24



Act 23.

On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANL, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, JENNA LYNN ELLIS, and RAY STALLINGS
SMITH Il committed the felony offense of SOLICITATION OF YIOLATION OF QATH
BY PUBLIC QFFICER, in violation of O.C.G.A. 88 16-4-T & 16-10-1, in Fulten County,
Georgia, by unlawfully soliciting, requesting, and importuning certain public officers then
serving as elected members of the (Georgia Senale and present at a Senate Judiciary
Subcommittee meeting, including unindicled co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity is
known to the Grand Jury, Scnators Les Anderson, Brandon Beach, Matt Brass, Greg Dolezal,
Sweve Gooch, Tyler Harper, Bill Heath, Jen Jordan, John F. Kennedy, William Ligon, Elena
Parent, Michae] Rhett, Carden Summers, and Blake ‘Tillery, to engage in conduct constituting the
felony offense of Yiolation of Qath by Public OfTicer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by unbawtully
appointing presidential electors from Geargia, in willful and intentional violation of the terms of
the oath of said persons as preseribed by law, with intent that said persons engage in said
conduct. This was an over act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 24,

On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI committed the felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS. in
violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and
unlawfully making at least one of the followmp false stalements and representations to members
of the Georgia Senate present at a Senate Judiclary Subcommiitee meoting:

1. That at least 96,600 mail-in ballats were counted in the November 3, 2020, presidential
¢lection in Georgia, despile there being no record of those ballols having been retumed to
a county clections office;

2. That Dominion Yoting Systems equipment used in the November 3, 2020, presidential
¢lection in Anlrim Counry, Michigan, mistakenly recorded 6,000 votes for Joseph R.
Biden when the votes were actually cast for Donald John Trump;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of Stale and
the Georgia Jdureau of Investigation, departments and agencies of state government, and county
and city law enforcement apencics. This was an act of macketeering activity under O.C.G.A. § 18-
14-3(3)A)(xxii) and an overt act in furherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 25,

Cn or about the 3rd day of December 2020, RAY STALLINGS SMITH ki commitied
the Felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITENGS, in violation of LC.GLA,L §
16-10-20, in Fulton County, Geongia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawlully making at least
one of the following fulse stalements and representations to members of the Georgia Senate
present al a Senate Judiciary Subcommiitee meeting:

1. That 2,506 felons voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Cleorpia;

2. That 66,248 underage people illegally registered to vote before their seventeenth birthday
prior to the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia;

3. That at least 2,423 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in
Creorgia who were not listed as registered 1o vote;

4. That 1,043 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgla who
had illeeally registered to vote using a post office box;

5. That 10,315 or more dead people voted in the Iovember 3, 2020, presidential election in
Georgia;

6. That Fulton County election workers at State Farm Arena ordered poll walchers and
members of the media to [cave the tabulation area on the night of November 3, 2020, and
continued to operate after ordering cveryone to leave;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of Stale and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, departments and agencies of state govemment, and county
and city law enforcement agencics. This was an act of racketeering activity under Q.C.G.A, § 16-
14-3(5( A¥xxii) and an overl act in funherance of the conspiracy.

Act 26,

On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted from the Twitter accownt @RealDonald Trump, “Wow! Rlockbuster testimony Laking
place right now in Georgia. Ballot siufling by Dems when Republicans were forced to leave the
larpe counting room. Plenty more coming, but this alone leads to an casy win of (the State!™ This
wis an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 27,

On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted from the Twitter account (@RealDonaldTrump, “People in Georgia got caught cold
hringing in massive numbers of ballots and putiing them in ‘voting” machines. Gieat job
@BrianKempGA!™" This was an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 28.

On or about the 3rd day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP met with
Speaker of the Pennsylvania House of Representatives Bryan Cutler in the Oval Oflice at the
White House and discussed holding a special session of the Pernsylvania General Assembly.

This was an gvert act m furtherance of the conspiracy.

Arck 29,

On or beoweent the 3rd day of December 2020 and the 26¢h day of December 2020,
RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI placed a telephone call to President Pro Tempore
of the Georgia Senate Cecil Terrell “Butch™ Miller for the purpose of making false statcments
concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georpia, This was an ovent
act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

At 30,

On or berween the 3rd day of December 2020 and the 26th day of December 2020,
DONALD JOHN TRUMP placed a telephone call to President Pro Tempore of the Georgia
Senate Butch Miller. This was an overt act in furlherance of the conspiracy.

Act 31,

On or about the Sth day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TREMP placed a
ielephone call to Georgia Governor Brian Kemp and solicited, requested, and importuned Kemp
to call a special session of the Georgia General Assembly. This was an overt act in furtherance of

the conspiracy.

Act 32,

On or about the 6th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused ta be
twected from the Twitier account (@Real DonaldTrump, “Gee, whal a surprise. Has anyone
informed the so-called (says he has no power to do anything?!) Governor ‘@ BrianKemp(GA & his
puppet Lt Governer GeoffDuncanGA, that they could easily solve this mess, & WIN.
Signature verification & call a Special Scssion. So casy! https:/t.co/3eh4Qd Y zplL” This was an
overt aci in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 33,

On or about the 6th day of December 2020, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL entered
into a writlen engagement agreement with SullivanSirickler LLC, a forensic data firm located 1n
Fulton County, Georgia, for the performance of computer forensic collections and analytics on
Drominion Voting Systems equipment in Michigan and elsewhere. The unlawiul breach of
election equipment in Coffee County, Georgia, wus subsequently performhed undet this
agreement. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 34,

{mn or about the Hth day of Deccmber 2020, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY sent an e-
mail to JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity
is known to the Grand Jury, and Georgia Senator Brandon Beach that staled, “T am working on
setting up a call for you with the Speaker and the President Pro Tempore tomorrow: [ am also
making the leadership aware of the impomance for Trump ¢lectors to mect on Decernber 14,
Please provide the cilation to the requirements of the duties which they must comply wiith.” Thes
was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Aet 35,

On ar about the 6th day of December 2020, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN sent an e-
mail to ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY , unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity is
known (0 the Grand Jury, and Georgia Scehator Brandon Beach that staled that the Trump
presidential elector nominees in Georgia needed to mect on December 14, 2020, sign stx sets of
sertificates of vote, and mail them “to the President of the Scnate and to other olficials.” This
was an over act in funherance of the conspiracy.

Act 36.

On or about the 6l day of December 2020, ROBERT DAVID CHEELLY sent ain e-
mail to unindicted co-conspirator Individual 2, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, that
stated he had been speaking with JOKN CHARLES EASTMAN and was allempting fe set up g
call with Speaker of the Georgla House of Representaiives David Ralston and President T'ro
Tempoie of the Georgla Scnate Butch Miller to encourage them to call a special session of the
Geargia General Assembly. In the e-mail, ROBERT DAYID CHELELEY stated, “Professor
LCastman told me tonight that il is critical that the 16 Electors for President Trump meet next
Moniay and vote in aceerdance with 3 US.C. § 7." In the e-majl, ROBERT DAVID
CHEELEY further stated, I assume you can make sure this happens.” This was an overl act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 37,

On or about the Tth day of December 2020, unindicted co-conspirator tndividual 2,
whose identity is known 10 the Grand Jury, sent an e-mail to ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY and
DAVIT JAMES SHAFLER that stated, “Bab, can u get on a call with David Shafer, state GOP
chair and [ later this morning to discuss. NDavid has been on top of a lot of efforts 1o the state. 1
get off of 1 board call around 10:30.™ This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 38,

On or about the Tth day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI causcd to be bveeled from the Twitter account (@RudyGluliani a retweet of
unindicted ¢o-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, that stated,
“(Georeia Patriot Call to Action: today is the day we need you to call your state Scnate & House
Reps & ask them to sign the petition for a special session. We must have free & fair ¢lections in
(3A & a this is our only path to ensuring every legal vote is counted. &realDonaldTnungp.” This
was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 39

On or about the 7¢h day uf December 2020, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN scnit an -
mail toa RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI with an attached memorandum utled “The
Real Deadline for Sctthing a State’s Glectoral Votes.” The body of the ¢-mail stated, “lere's the
meme we discussed.” The memorandum was wrillen by KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO 10
James R, Troupis, au attomey associated with the Trump Campaign, and advocates for the
position that Trump presidential elector nominees in Wisconsin should meet and cast electoral
votes for DONALD JOHN TRUMTI on December 14, 2020, despite the fact that INONALD
JOHN TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Wisconsin. This e-mail was
an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 4).

On or about the 7th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP requested that
Bill White, an individual associated with the Trump Campaign then residing in Fulton County,
Georgia, provide him with certain information, including contact information for Majority
Leader of lhe (Georgia Senate Mike Dugan and President Pro Tempore of the Georgia Senate
Butch Miller. The following day, White sent an ¢-mail containing the requested information to
RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIUVLIANI, unindicted co-conspirator Individual 5, whose
identity is known to the Grand Jury, and others, This request was an overl act in furtherance of
the conspiracy.

Act 41,

On or about the 7th day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULTANI placed a telephone call to Speaker of the Georgia House of Representatives David
Ralston and discussed holding a special session of the Georgia General Assembly. This was an
overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 42,

On or about the 7th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP commiticd the
felony offense of SOLICITATION OF YIOLATION OF QOATIH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, in
vinlation of 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, in Fulion County, Georgia, by unlawfully soliciting,
requesting, and impaortuning Speaker of the Georgia House of Representatives David Ralston, a
public officer, to cngage in conduct conslituting the felony offense of Yiolation of Oath by
Public Officer, .C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by calling a special session of the Georgia General
Assembly {or the purposc of unlawfully appomting presidential electors from Georgia, in willful
and intentional violation of the terms of the path of said person as prescribed by law, with intent
that said person engage in satd conduct. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspimey.

Act 43,

On or ahout the 8th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP placced a
telephone call o Georgia Attomey General Chris Carr for the purpose of making false slalements
concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia and elsewhere.
During the telephone call, DONALD JOHN TRUMP asked Carr not to discourape other state
atlomeys general from joining a federal lawsuit filed by the Siate of Texas contesting the
administration of the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in Georgia, Michigan,
Pennsylvania, and Wisconsin. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspimacy.

Act 34.

On or about the Sth day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and JOHN
CHARIES EASTMAN placed a telephone call to Republican National Commitiee
Chairwoman Ronna MeDaniel to request her assistance gathering cerlain individuals to meet and
cast clectoral votes for DONALD JOLN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, in cerlain slales
despite the fact that DONALD JOHN TRUMDP lost the November 3, 2020, presidential election
in those stales. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 45,

On or aboul the Bth day of December 2020, MICHAEL A ROMAN sent a text
message to unindicted co-conspirator Individual 4, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury,
stated that he had spoken to MISTY HAMFITON, and asked unindicted co-conspirator
Individual 4 to “get” MISTY [HAMPTON to attend the hearing before the Georgia House of
Representatives Governmental Aftairs Committee on December 10, 2020, This was an overt act
in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 46.

On or abaut the 9th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO wrotc a
memorandum titled “Statutory Reguirements for Decomber 14 Llectoral Votes™ to James R.
Troupis, an atlorney associated with the Trump Campaign. The memorandum provides detailed,
state-speeific instructions for how Trump presidential eleclor nominees in Georgia, Arizona,
Michigan, Nevada, Pennsylvania, and Wisconsin would meet and cast elecloral votes for
DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN
TRUMP lost the Movember 3, 2020, presidential election in those slates. This was an overt act
in fupherance of the conspiracy.

Act 47,

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
e-mail to Georgia Republican Party Chaimnan DAVID JAMES SHAFER and unindicted co-
conspirator Individual 9, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, KENNETH JOHN
CHESEBROQ stated in the c-mal that ceflaim individuals azsociaed with (he Trump Campaign
asked him “to help coordinate with the other 5 conlested Siates, to help with logistics of the
electors in other States hopefully joining in casting their votes en Monday.” This was an overl
act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 48.

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBR() sent an
e-mail with aflached documems o DAVID JAMES SHAFER and unindicted co-conspirators
Individual 2, Individual 1{}, and Individual 11, whose identities are known to the Grand Jury. The
documents were to be used by Trump presidential clector nominees in Georgia for the purpose of
casting electoral votes for DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact

that PONALYL JOHN TRUMP losi the Novemnber 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgla.
This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 49,

On or about the 10¢h day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO scnt an
e-mail with attached documents 1o Arizona Republican Pary Exccutive Dircetor Grep Safsten
and others. The documents were to be used by Trump presidential elector nominecs in Adzons
for the purpose of casting electoral votes for DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020,
deqpue the fact that DONALD JOHN TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020, presidenttal election
in Arizona. This was an overl act in funtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 50,

On or about the 10¢h day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEHRO sent an
g-mail 1 Republican Party of Wisconsin Chairman Brian Schimming with proposed language
for documents to be used by Trump presidential eleclor nominees in Wisconsin for the purpose
of casting ¢lecloral voies for DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact
that DONALD JOHN TRUMP lost the Novemnber 3, 2020, presidential election in Wisconsin,
This was an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 51,

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
c-mail to Nevada Republican Party Vice Chairman Jimn DeGraffenreid. KENNETH JOHN
CHESEBRO =tated in the 2-mail that RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI and other
individuals associated with the Trump Campaign asked him “to reach out to you and the other
Nevada electors to run poimt an the plan to have all Trump-Penee electors in all six contested
Stalcs meet and tramsniit their votes to Congress on Monday, Dec. 14.” This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy. r

Act 52,

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
e-mail with atlached decuments to Jim DeGraffenreid. The documents were ta be used by Trump
presidential elector nominecs in Nevada for the purpose of casting electoral votes for DONALD
JOHN TRUMP on Deceniber 14, 2020, despite the faci that DONALD JOHN TRUMP lost
the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Nevada. This was an overt act in furtherance of
the conspiracy.

Act 52,

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
c-mail with atlached documents (o Republican Parly of Pennsylvania General Counsel Thomas
W, King 1. The documents were to be used by Trump presidential clector nominees in
Pennosylvania for the purpose of casiing electoral votes for DONALD JOHN TRUMP on
Deeember 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN TRUMP lost the Novemnber 3, 2020,
presidential election in Pennsylvania. This was an overt act in furherance of the conspiracy.

et 54,

On or between the 10th day of December 2020 and the 14th day of December 2020,
DAVID JAMES SHAFER contacled unindicted co-conspirator Individual 2, whose identity is
known to the Grand Jury, by telephone and discussed unindicted co-conspirator Individual 2's
attendance at the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton
County, Georzia. This was an overt act in funherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 55,

On or about the 10th day of Decemhber 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUILS
GIULIANT and RAY STALLINGS SMITH I committed the felony offense of
SOLICITATION OF VIOLATTON OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, in violation ol
0.C.G. A §§ 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, in Fulton County, Georgla, by unlawlully soliciting, requesting,
and importuning certain public officers then serving as elected members of the Georgia House of
Representatives and present at a House Governmenta] Alfairs Committee meeting, including
Representatives Shaw Blackmen, Jon Burns, Barry Fleming, Todd Jonces, Bee Ngoyen, Mary
Margaret Oliver, Alan Powell, Renitta Shannon, Robert Trammell, Scot Turner, and Bruce
Williamson, to cngage in conduct constituting the felony offense of Yiolation of Oath by Public
Officer, O.C.GLA. § 16-10-1, by unlawfully appointing presidential electors from Georgia, in
wiliful and intentional violation of the terms of ihe vath of said persons as preseribed by law,
with intent that said persans engage in said conduct. This was an overt act in furtherance of the
Conspiracy.
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AcCL 56,

On or about the 10th day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS

GIULIANI committed the felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in
violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfuily, and
unlawfully making at least one of the following false slatements and representations m members
of the Georgia House of Representatives present at a House Governmental Allaics Committee

meeting:

1.

I~

That it is quite clear from the State Farm Arena video from November 3, 2020, that
Fulton County election workers were stealing votes and that Georgia officials were
covermg up a crime in plain sight;

That at State Farm Arena on Movember 3, 2020, Demoeratic officials “pot rid of all of the
réporters, all the observers, anyone that couldn’t be trusted,” used the excuse of a
watermain break, cleared out the voting arca and then “went about their dity, crooked
busincss™;

That between 12,000 and 24,000 ballots were illegally counted by Fulton County election
workers at State [Farm Arena on November 3, 2020;

That in Michigan, there were 700,000 more ballots counted than were seat oot to voters
in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection, which was accounted for by quadruple
counting hallots;

That Ruby Freeman, Shaye Moss, and an unidentilied man were “quite ohviously
surreptitiously passing arcund U'SB ports as if they're vials of heroin or cocaine™ at State
Farm Arcna to be used to “infiltrate the croeked Dominion voting machines™;

That 96,600 mail-in ballots were counted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election
in Georgia, despite there being no record of thase ballots having been returned to a
county clections offics;

satd staements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of (he Georgia Secretary of State and
the Georpia Bureau of [nvestigation. depadments and agencies of slate governmient, and county
and city law enforcement agencies. This was an act of racketecring activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-
14-3(5M A)(xxii) and an overl acl in furtherance of the conspiracy,



Aet 57,

On or about the 11th day of Iecember 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER reserved Room
216 at the Georgia Stale Capitol in Fulton County, Georgia, for the December 14, 2020, meeting
of Trump presidential clector nominces in Fulton County, Georgia. This was an averl act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 38,

On or about the 11th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO scnt an
¢-mail to Jim DeCiraffenreid and stated that “the purpose of having the clectoral votes sent in fo
Congress is to provide the opportunity to debate the cloction irregularities in Congress, and to
keep alive the possibility that the votes counld be (lipped to Trump.”™ This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspirscy.

Act 59,

On or about the EEth day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEDRO scol un
c-mail with attached documents to Greg Safsten and others. The decuments were to be used by
Trump presidential clector nominees in Arizona for the purposc of casting electoral votes for
DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN
TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in Arizona. 'This was an overl act in
furtherance ol the conspiracy.

Act 60,

On or about the TEth day of Decemher 2020, KENNETI JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
e-mail with attached documents 10 MICHAEL A. ROMAN and other individuals associated
with the Trump Campaign. The documents were to be ysed by Trump presidential elector
nominees in Nevada for the purpose of casting ¢lectoral voles for DONALD .JOTIN TRUMP cn
December 14, 2020, despite the lact that DONALD JOHN TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020,
presidential election in Nevada. This was an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 61,

On or about the 11th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO scnt an
e-mail with attached documents to MICHAEL A, ROMAN, unindicted co-conspirator
[ndividual 5, whose identity 18 known to the Grand Jury, and others. The documents were to be
used by Trump presidential elector nominees in Georgia for the purpose of casting electoral
votes for DONALD JOHN TRUM)® on 1 2ecember 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD
JOHN TRUMTP lost the Novemnber 3, 2020, presidentizl election in Georpia. This was an overt
act m furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 62,

(n or aboul the 12th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER contacted
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 12, whose identity 15 known to the Grand Jury, and
discussed unindicted co-conspirator Individual 12°s attendance at the December 14, 2020,
meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton County, Georgia. This was an overt act
in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 63,

{Un or about the 12th day of December 2020, MICHAEL A. ROMAN sent an e-mail to
unindicted co-conspirators Individual 4 and Individual 7, whose identities are known to the
Grand Jury, and other individuals associated with the Trump Campaign. In the ¢-mail,
MICHAEL A. ROMAN stated, ©l need a racker for the electors,” and instructed individuals
assuciated with the Trump Campaign o pepulale entries on a shured spreadsheet Tisting Trump
presidential elector nominees in Georgia, Arizona, Michigan, Nevada, Pennsylvania, and
Wisconsin, The entries on the spreadsheet included contact information for the Trump
presidential elector nominees, whether the T'rump presidential elector nominces had heen
contacted, and whether the Trump prestdential clector nominees had conlirmed that they would
attend the December 14, 2020, meetings of Trump presidential elector nominecs in thetr
respective states, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN TRUMP losi the November 3, 2020,
presidential clection in those states. This was an overt act in furiheranes of the conspimey.

Act 64,

On or about the 12th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRQ met
with Brian Schimming end discussed the December 14, 2020, mecting of Tramp presidential
elector nominees in Wisconsin, REDOLUPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI joined the meeting
by telephone and stated that the media should not be netified of the December 14, 2020, meeting
of Trump presidential elector nominees in Wisconsin. These were overl acts in furtherance of the
CONSPIIACY.

Act G5,

On or about the 12th day of December 2020, MICHAEL A. ROMAN instructed an
individual associated with the Trump Campaign to distibute certain information related to the
December 14, 2020, meetings ol Trump presidential elector tominess in Georgia, Arizona,
Michigan, Nevada, New Mexico, Pennsylvania, and ¥Wisconsin to unindicted co-conspirator
Individual 4, whose identity 13 koown to the Grand Tury, and o other individuals associated with
the Trump Campaign. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 64,

On or about the 12th day of December 2024, unindicted co-conspirator Individual 4,
whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, sent an e-mail to MICHAEL A, ROMAN and
DAVID JAMES SHAFER with updates on the progress of organizing the December 14, 2020,
mecting of Trump presidential elector nominces in Fulton County, Georgia. The e-mail stated
which elector nominees had confirmed they would attend the meeting, that other individuals had
been secured in case some of Lhe elector nominees reflused to participate in the meeting, that
(Georpia legislators had been conlacted to ensure access to the Georgia Capitol, and that DAYID
JAMES SHAFER had reserved Room 216 for the meeting. This was an overt act in furtherance
ol the conspiracy.

Act 67,

On or about the 12th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER sent an c-mail
to unindicted co-cunspirator individual 4. whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, advising
themn to “touch base™ with each of the Trump presidential elector nowiness in Georgia m advance
of the December 14, 2020, mesting to confirm their attendance. This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 68,

Omn or about the 12th day of December 2020, unindicted co-conspirater Individual 4,
whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, sent a text message with contact information for
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identily is known to the Grand Jury, and Georgia
Senator Brandon Beach to MICHAEL A. ROMAN for the purpose of providing the contact
information to RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI. This was an overl act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 69,

On or about the 13th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBR() sent an
e-malil wilh attached documents ta MICHAEL A. ROMAN. The documents wete to b used by
Trump presidential elector nominees in New Mexico for the purpose of casting electoral voles
for DONALD JOHN TRUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN
TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020, presidential election in New Mexico. This was an overl act
in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Aet 70,

On or about the 13th day of December 2020, KENNE TH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an
e-mail v RUBOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI wath the subject "PRIVILEGED AND
CONFIDENTIAL ~ Brief notes on *President of the Senate” siratepy.”™ In the ¢-mail, KENNETH
JOHN CHESEBRO outlined multiple strateeics for disrupting and delaying the joint session of
Congress on January 6, 202], the day prescribed by law for counting votes cast hy the duly
elecied and qualified presidential €leelors from Georgia and the other states. In the e-mail,
KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO stated that the strategics outlined by him were “preferable to
allowing the Elecoral Count Act to opernle by its terms.” This was an overt act in furtherance of
the conspiracy.

Act 71,

{0 or about the 13th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEDBRO scnt an
c-mail with attached documents 10 MIICHAEL A, ROMAN and unindicted co-conspirator
Individual 4, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury. The docwmenls were to be used by
Trump presidential clector nominecs in Georgla for the purpose of castung clecloral voles for
DONALD JOEN TRLUMP on December 14, 2020, despite the fact that DONALD JOHN
TRUMP lost the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia. This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 72,

Cn or aboul the 13th day of December 2020, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO scnt an
g-mail to MICHAEL A. ROMAN and unindicted co-conspirator Tndividual 4, whose identity is
known 1o the Grand Jury, and stated that RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULTANT “wants o
kecp this quiet until after all the voting is done,” in reference to the December 14, 2020, meeting
of Trunp presidential elector nominees in Fulton County, Georgia. This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 73.

On or aboul the 13th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER sent a text
message to unindicted co—conspirator Individual 4, whose identity is known to Lhe Grand Jury,
and stzted that unindicted co-conspiraler Individual 8, whose identity is known to the Grand
Jury, would anend the December 14, 2020, meeting of "I'rump presidential elector nominees in
Fulton County, Georgia, in the place of a Trump presidential clector nominee who refised o
parlicipate in the meeting. This was an overl act in furtherence of the conspiracy.
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Act 74,

Ont or about the 13th day of December 2028, unindicted co-conspirater Individual 9,
whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, sent a text message to DAYID JAMES SHAFER
and eonfimmed that he and vnindicted co-conspirator Individual 13, whose identity is known to
the Grand Jury, would attend the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector
nomunces in Fulton County, Geergla, This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 75,

(11 or about the T4th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
nvected from the Twitter account (@RealDonald T rump, “What a fool Governor @BrianKemp(iA
of Georgia is. Could have been so easy. but itow we have 1o do it the hard way. Demand this
clown call a Special Session and open up signature verification, NOW, Otherwise, could be a bad
day for two GREAT Senators o January 5th.” This was an overl act in furthcranes of the
conspiracy.

Act Th.

On or about the I4th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER sent a text
message to unindicted co-conspirator Individual 4, whose identity is known 1o the Grand Jury
that stated, “Listen. Tell them to po straight 1o Room 216 to aveid drawing aitention to what we
are doing.” in reference to the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector
nominess in Fulten County, Georgla, This was an over act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 77,

Onor about the 14th day of Deeember 2020, MICHAEL A, ROMAN sent an e-mail to
unindicted co-conspirators Individual 4 and Individual 7, whose identities are known to the
Cirand Jury, and stated, “Pleasc scnd me an update as soon as the State Electoral College has
adjourned and all paperwork is secured.” This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 7.

O or about the 1dth day of December 2020, RAY STALLINGS SMITH I and
DAVID JAMES SHAFER encouraged cenain individuals prescent at the December 14, 2020,
rceting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulten County, Georgila, to sign the document
titled “CERTIFICATE OTF TIHE VOTES OF THL 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA."” This
was an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 79,

On or about the 14th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, and unindicted co-
conspirators Individual 2, Individual &, Individual 9, Individual 10, Individual 11, Individual 12,
Individual 13, Individual 14, Tndividual 13, Individual 16, Individual 17, Tndividua! 18, and
Individual 19, whose identitics ane known to the Grand Jury, committed the felony offense of
[MPERSONATING A PUBLEC OFFICER, in viclation of 0,.C.G,A. § 16-10-23, in Fulion
Coualy, Georyia, bv unlawfully falscly holding themselves out as the duly electad and qualilicd
presidential electors fom the State of Georgia, public officers, with intent to mislead the
President of the United States Senaic, the Archivist of the United States, the Georggia Secretary of
State, and the Chiel Judge of the United States District Court for the Northern District of Geonzia
into believing that they actually were such officers by placing m the United Stales mail to said
persons a document titled “CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS TROM
GLORGIA™ This was an act of racketeering activity under O.C.GoA. § 16-14-3(50 A K xxii1) and
an overt act m furtherance of the conspmacy.

Act Bk

On or about the 14th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, and unindicted co-
conspirators Individual 2, Individual 8, Individual 9, Individua! 10, Individual 11, Individval 12,
Individual 13, Individual 14, Individual 15, Individual 16, Individoal 17, Individual 18, and
Individual 19, whose identities are known to the Grand Jury, committed the felony offense of
FORGERY IN THE FIRST DEGREE, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-9-1{b), in Fultan
Counry, Georgia, by, with the intent to defraud, knowingly making a document titled
“CERTIFICATE OF THE V{I'ES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEQRGIA,” a writing
other than a check, in such manmner that the writing as made purperts (o have been maie by
authority of the duly elected and qualified presidential electors from the State of Ueorgia, who
did not give such authority, and uttered and delivered said document to the Archivist of the
United Slates. This was an act of racketcering activity under Q.C.GLA. § 16-14-3(3)(A)(xvi) and
an overl acl in furtherance ol the conspiracy.
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Act §1.

On or about the 14th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM., and unindicted co-
conspirators Jndividual 2, Individual 8, Individual 9. Individual 10, Individual 11, Individual 12,
Individual 13, Individual 14, Individual 15, Individual 16, Individual 17, Individual 18, and
Individuai 19, whose identities are known to the Grand Jury, committed the felony offense of
FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in viclation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-2(, in Fulton
Counly, Georgla, by knowingly, willlully, and unlaw{ully making and using a false document
titled “CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEQRGIA” with
knowledge that sald document contained the false starement, *WI, THE UNDERSIGNED,
being the duly clected and qualified Electors for President and Vice President of the United
States of America from the Siate of Georgia, do hereby certify the following,” said document
being within the jurisdiction of the Olfice of the Georpia Secretary of Slate and the Office of the
Govemnor of Georgla, departments and agencies of state government. This was an aet of
racketeering activity under O.C.G.A, § 16-14-3(5)(A)xxit) and an overt act in furthernce of the
conspimcy.

Act 82,

On or about the 14th day of December 2020, DAYID JAVIES SHAFER, SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL., CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, and unindicted co-
conspirators Individual 2, Individus| §, Individual 9, Tndividual 14, Individual 11, Individual 12,
Individual 13, Individual 14, Individaal 15, Individual 16, Individual 17, Individual 18, and
Individual 19, whose identities are known 1o the Grand Jury, attempted to commit the felony
offense of FILING FALSE DOCUMENTS, in violation of QLC.G.A.L § 16-10-20.1{b){1), in
Futton County, (reorpia, by placing in the United States mat! a document titled “CERTIFICAT=
CF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA, addressed to Chief Judge,
U.S. District Court, torthern District of Georgia, 2188 Richard D. Russell Federal Office
Building and 1J.8. Courthouse, 75 Ted Turner Drive, 8W, Atlanla, GA 30303, with intent to
knowingly file, enter, and record said document in a court of the United States, having reason o
know that said document comtained the materially {alse statement, “WE, THE UNDERSIGNED,
being the duly elected and qualified Electors for President and Vice President of the United
States of America from the State of Georgia, do hereby cenify the following.” This was an act of
racketeering activity under O.C.G. A § 16-14-3(5) AXxxil) and an overt act tn furtherance of the
CORSPITACY.
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Act 83,

On ar about the 14th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER and SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL committed the felony offense of FORGERY IN THE FIRST
DEGREE, in violation of (LC.GLA, § 16-3-1(b), in Fulton County, Georgia, by, with the intent
to defraud, knowingly making 2 document titled “RE: Notice of Filling of Elecioral College
Vacancy,” a writing other than a check, in such manner thal the writing as made purports to have
been made by the auwthorily of the duly elected and qualilied presidential elsctors from the State
of Georgla, who did not give such authority, and uttered and delivered said document to the
Archivist of the United Stales. This was an act of racketeering activity under Q.C.G.A. § 16-14-
35X AXxv) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 84,

Op or aboul the 14th day of December 2020, DAVID JAMES SHAFER and SHAWN
MICAH TRESHER STILL committed the felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND
WRITINGS, in violation of O.C.G A § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly,
willlully, and unlawfully making and using a false document titled “RE: Notice of Filling of
Electoral Coliege Vacancy,” with knowlcdge that said document contained the false statements
that DAYID JAMES SHAFER was Chairman of the 2020 Georgia Flectoral College Meeting
and SHAWN MICAH TRESHEHR STILL was Secretary of the 2020 Georgia Elecloral College
Mezting, said document being within the jurisdiction of the Ofice of the Georgia Secretary of
State and the Office of the Govemnor of Georgia, depantments and agencies of state povernment.
This was an act of racketeering activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5)(A}(xxii) and an overt act in
furithcrunce of the conspiracy.

Aet 85,

On or aboul the 14th day of December 2020, DAYID JAMES SHAFER instructed
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 15, whose identity is known 1o the Grand Jury, to deliver to
the Office of the Govemor of Georzia a document signed by DAYID JAMES SHAFER and
SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL titled “RE: Notice of Filling of Electoral College
VYacancy.” The document contained multiple false statements. This was an overl act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 86,

On or aboul the 14th day of December 2020, umndicted co-conspirator individual 4,
whose dentity is known to the Grand Jury, sent an e-mail io MICHAEL A. ROMAN,
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 7, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, and others
that siated, “All votes cast, paperwork complete, being mailed now. Ran pretty smoothly,™ in
reference to the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton
County, Georgia. This was an over act in funherance of the conspiracy.
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Act B7.

Onor about the 14th day of December 2024, STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE attcmpted
to commiit the felony offense of INFLUENCING WITNESSES, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-
10-93(b)(1)(A}, int Fulton County, Georgia, by traveling to the home of Ruby Freeman, a Fullon
County, Georgia, eilection worker, and speaking to her neighbor, with intent to knowingly chgage
in misleading conduct toward Ruby Freeman, by purpernting to offer her help, and with intent to
influence her testimony in @n official proceeding in Fulton County, Georgia, concerning events
at Stale Farm Arena in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia. This was an act
of rackewering activity pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5)}AXxxvii) and an overt act in
furtherance of he conspiracy.

Act BR.

On or about the 15th day of December 2020, STEFHEN CLIFFGARD LEE atempted
to commit the felony offense of INFLUENCING WITNESSES, in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-
10-93(b)(1)(A). in Fulton County, Georgia, by traveling to the home of Ruby Freeman, a Fulton
County, Georgia, election worker, and knocking on her door, with intent to knowingly engage in
misleading conduct oward Ruby Freeman, by purperting to offer her help, and with intent to
influence her testimony in an official proceeding in Fulton County, Georgia, concerning events
at Btate Farm Arcna in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georpia. This was an act
of racketeering activity pursuant to (.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(3){A)(xxvi{) and an over act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 89.

On or between the 15th day of December 2020 and the 4th day of January 2021,
STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE solicited HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, an
individual associated wilh the organization Black Voices for Trump, to assist with his efforl to
speak to Ruby reeman, a Fulton County, Geergia, election worker. STEPHEN CLIFFGARD
LEE stalcd to HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD that Freeman was afraid to talk
to STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE because he was a white man. These were ovent acls in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 90,

On or aboul lhe 18th day of December 2020, DONALD JOIHN TRUMP met with
RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI, SIDNEY KATHERINE FOWELL, unindicted
co-conspirator Individual 20, whose identity 15 known to the Grand Jury. and others at the White
House. The {ndividuals present at the meeting discussed cerain strategies and Lheories intended
to influence the outeome of the November 3, 2020, presidential election, including scizing voling
eqquipment and appointing SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL #s special counsel with broad
authoriry to investigate allegations of voter fraud in Georgia and elsewhere, This was an overt act
in furlherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 91,

On or about the 21s¢ day of December 2020, SIDNEY KATHERINE FPOWELL sent
an g-mail to the Chiel Operations Oficer of SullivanStrickler LLC and insimucted him that she
and unindicted co-conspirators Individual 6, Individual 21, and Individual 22, whose idemities
are known to the Grand Jury, were lo immediately “receive a copy of all data™ oblained by
SullivanSirickler LLC from Dominion Voting Systems equipment in Michigan. This was an
avert act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 92,

{On or about the 22nd day of December 2020, MARK RANDALL MEADOWS
treveled to the Cobb County Civic Center in Cobb Counly, Georgia, and atlemipted Lo observe the
signature match andit being performed there by law enforcement officers from the Georgia
Bureau of Investigation and the Qffice of the Georgiz Secretary of Sale, despite the fact that the
audit process was not open to the public. While present at the center, MARK RANDALL
MEADOWS spoke lo Georgia Deputy Secretary of Stale Jordan [uchs, Office of the Georgla
Scorctary of State Chief Investigator Frances Watson, (Georpia Bureau of Investipation Special
Apent in Charge Bahan Rich, and others, who prevented MARK RANDALL MEADOWS from
gnlering into the space where the andit was being conductad. This was an overt act in furtherance
of the conspiracy.

Act 9.

On er abent the 23rd day of December 2020, BONALDR JOHNY TRUMP placed &
telephone call o Office of the Georgia Secretary of State Chief Investigator Frances Wartson that
had been previously arranged by MARK RANDALL MEADOWS. During the phone call,
DONALD JOHN TRUMP falsely stated that he had won the November 3, 2020, presidential
election in (Georgig “by hundreds of thousands of votes™ and stated lo Watson that *“when the
right answer comes out you'll be praised.” This was an overt act in furthcrance of the conspiracy.

Act 94,

On or about the 23rd day of December 2020, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN sent an e-
mail to KENNETH JOHN CHESERRO and unindicted co-conspirator Individual 3, whose
identity is known to the Grand Jury, with the subject “FW: Drafi 2, with edits.” In the g-mail,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN atlached a memorandum titled “PRIVIL.EGED AND
CONFIDENTIAL -- Dec 23 memo on Jan 6 scenario.docx” and stated, *As for hearings, I think
both are unnceessary. 'The fact that we have multiple slates of clectors demonstmws the
uncertainty of either. That should be enough. And I apree with Ken that Judiciary Commitee
heanines on the constitutionality of the Elecloral Count Act could mvite counter views that we do
not believe should constrain Pence (or Grassley) in the exercise of power they have under the
12 Amendment. Beiler for them just to act boldly and be challenged, since the challenge would
likely lead to the Courl denying review on nonjusticiable political question grounds.” This was
an overt act in futherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 95,

On or about the 25th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP placed a
telephone call 10 Speaker of the Arizona House of Representatives Rusty Bowers for the purpose
of soliciting, reguesting, and importuning Bowers to unlawiully appoint presidentiaf electors
from Arizona. During the call, Bowers stated to Trump, “1 voted for you. [ worked for you. |
campaipned for you. | just won’t do anything illegal for you.” This telephone call was an overt
act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

At B,

On ar about the 27th day of December 2020, MARK RANDALL MEADOWS sent a
text messape lo OfMice of the Georgia Secretary of State Chief Invesligator Frances Watson that
stated in part, *Is there a way to speed up ulton county signature verification in order 1o have
results belore Jan 6 if the trump campaign assist financially,” This was an overt acl in furtherance

of the conspiracy.
Act 97,

On or about the 27th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMD solicited
Acting United States Attomey General Jeflrey Rosen and Acting United States Deputy Attorney
(eneral Richard Donoghue to make a false statement by stating, “Just say that the efection was
corrupt, and leave the rest 1o me and the Republican congressmen.” This was an overl act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 98,

On or about the 28th day of December 2020, JEFFREY BOSSERT CLARK attempted
to commit the felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in violation of
0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly and willfully making a false
writing and document knowing the same to contain the false statement that the United States
Depariment of Justice had *identified significant concerns that may have impacted the outcome
of the election in multiple States, including the State of Georgia,” said slalement being within the
jurisdictien of the Office of the Georzia Secretary of Stale and the Georgia Bursau of
Investigation, departments and agencics of state government, and county and city law
enforcement agencies;

And on or about the 28th day of December 2020, JEFFREY BOSSERT CLARK sent
an ¢-mail to Acting United States Attomey General Jeflrey Rosen and Acting United States
Deputy Attorney General Richard Donoghue and requested authorization to send said lalse
writing and document to Georgia Governor Drian Kemp, Speaker of the Geergia House of
Representatives David Ralsion, and President Pro Tempore of the Georgia Senate Butch Miller,
which constitutes a subslantial step toward the commission of False Staternents and Writings,
OCGAL S 16-10-20. This was an act of racketeering activify under O.C.GAL § 16-14-
3(5WAMxxii) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 99,

On or about the 28th day of December 2020, JEFFREY BOSSERT CLARK solicited
Acting [Inited States Attorney General Jeffrey Rosen and Acting United States Deputy Attormey
General Richard Donoghuc to sign and send a document that talsely siated that the United States
Department of Justice had “identifled significant concerns that may have impacted the vutcome
of the election in multiple States, including the State of Georpia,™ to Georgia Governor Brian
Kemp, Speaker of the Georpia House of Representalives David Ralston, and President Pro
Tempore of the Georgla Senate Butch Miller, This was an overt act in [urtherance of the
conspiracy.

Act 100,

(3n or about the 30th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP causead to be
tweeted from the Twitter account (@ RealDonaldTrump, “Hearings from Atlanta on the Georgia
Clection everlum now betng broadeast. Check it out, @OANN @newsmax and many more.
@Briankcemp(GA should resign from office. He is an obstructionist who refuses to admit that we
won Georgia, BIG! Also won the other Swing States ™ This was an overt act in furtherance of the

conspiracy.
Act 101,

O or about the 30th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted from the Twitter account (g RealDonaldTrump, “Hearings from Atlania on the (Georgia
Election overturnt now being broadcast LIVE via @RSBNetwork! htips://t.co/ogBvLbKigG.”
This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 102,

On or about the 30th day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULTANT, RAY STALLINGS SMITH Iil, and ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY committed
the felony ofense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER,
in violation of 0.C.G.A. §8 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, in Fulion Ceunty, Georgia, by soliciting,
requesting, and importuning cermain public alficers then serving as clected membcers of the
Georpia Senate and present at a Senate Judisiary Subcommiliee meeting, including uwnindicled
co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, Scnators Brandon Beach,
Rill Heath, William Ligon, Michael Rhett, and Blake Tillery, {0 engage in conduct constituting
the felony offense of Yiolation of Oath by Public Officer, O.C.G. AL § 16-10-1, by unlawfully
appointing presidential electors from the State of Georgia, in willful and intentional vielation of
the terms of the oath of said persons as prescribed by law, with intent that said persons engage in
said conduct. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 103.

On or aboul the 30th day of December 2020, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS
GIULIANI committed the felony offense of FALSEKE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in
violation of 0.C.G. A, § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, will fully, and
unlawlully making at least one of the following false statemnents and representalions to members
of the Georgia Senate present at a Scnate Judiciary Subcommittee meeting:

1. That Fulton County election workers frandulently counled certain ballots as many
as {ive times at State Farm Arena on November 3, 2020;

2. 'That 2,560 felons voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential eleetion in
Geuorgia;

That 10,315 dead people voled in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Georpia,

L

said statermnents being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Georgia Bureau of [nvestigation, depantments and agencies of state govemment, and county
and city law enforcement agencies. This was an act of racketeering activity under 0.C.G.A. § 16-
14-3(3)(A)(xxii) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 104,

On or about the 30th day of December 2020, RAY STALLINGS SMITHU ITY
committed the felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in violation of
0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully
making at least one of the following false statements and representations to members of the
(ieorgia Senate present at a Senate Judiciary Subcommiitee meeting:

1. That Georgia Secretary of Siate General Counsel Byan Germany stated thal his
office had senl letters to 8,000 people who voted illegaliy in the November 3,
2020, presidentia] election and told them not to vote in the January 5, 2021, runoff
election;

2. That the Geergia Secretary of State admined “that they had a 90% accuracy rate™
in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection and that *“there’s stili a 10% margin
that’s not accurate™;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, departmentis and agencies of state government, and county
and city law enforcement agencics. This was an act of racketeering activity under 0.C.G.A. § 16-
14-3(5} A)(xxii) and an overt act in funtherance of the conspiracy.
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Art 108,

On or about the 30th day of December 2020, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY commiited
the telony ofiense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in viclation of O.C.G AL 8
16-10-20, in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawhilly making at teast
onc of the following false slatements and representations to members of the Gueorgia Senate
present at a Senate Judiciary Subcommiltee meeting:

1. That poll watchers and media at State Farmn Arcna were told laiwe in the evening of
MNovember 3, 2020, that the vote count was being suspended until the next
miorning and to go heme because ol “a major watermain break™;

2. That Fulton County eleetion workers at Stale Farm Arena “voted” the same
ballots “over and over again™ on November 3, 2020,

siid statements being within the jurisdiction of the Olfice of the Georgia Secretary of Slate and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, depariments and agencies of slate govenument, and county
and ¢ty law enforcement agencies. This was an act of racketcering activity under 0.C.G.A. § 16-
14-3(5) Ay xxii) and an oven act in [untherance of the conspimey.

Avt 106.

On or about the 30th day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted from the Twitter account (@RealDenald Trump, “We now have far more votes than
needed to flip Georgia in the Presidentiz] race. Massive VOTER FRRAUD took place. Thunk you
to the Georma Legislature Lor today’s revealing meeting!™ This was an ovenl act in funtherance of
the conspiracy.

Act 107,

Om or about the 31st day of December 2020, JENNA LYNN ELLIES wrote a
remorandurm litled “Memorandum Re: Constitutional Analysis of Vice President Authority for
January 6, 2021 Electoral College Vore Count™ to DONALD JOHN TRUMP. The
memorandum outlined a sirategy for disrupting and delaying the joint session of Congress on
January 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for counting votes cast by the duly elected and
qualified presidential electors from (Georgia and the other states, and stated, “the Vice President
should theretore nat open any of the votes™ from six states, including Georgia, that were Galscly
chamcterized as having “electoral delegates in dispute.” This was an overt act in furtherance of
the conspiracy.
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Act 108,

On or gbout the 318t day of December 2020, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and JOHMN
CHARLES EASTMAN comniitied the felony affense of FILING FALSE DOCUMENTS, in
vinlation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20,1{10(}), in Fulton County, Georpia, by knowingly filing a
document titled “*VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR EMERGENCY INJUNCITVE AND
DECLARATORY RELIEF” in the matter of Trump v, Kemp, Casc 1:20-cv-05310-MI1C, in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Geongia, a court of the United Slates
having reason 1o know that said document contuined at least one of the following materially false
Sltatements:

1. That “as many as 2,506 felons with an uncampleled scmence™ voted illegally in the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia;

2. That “at least 66,247 undermge” people voted illegully in the November 3, 2020,
presidential election i Georgia;

3. That “at least 2,423 individuals™ voled illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential
election in Georgia “who were not listed in the State’s records as having been registered
fo vote™;

4. That “at least 1,043 individuals™ voled illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection “*who had illegally registered to vote using a postal oflice hox as (heir
habilation™; :

5. ‘That “as many as 10,315 or mone” dead people voted in the November 3, 2020,
presidential election in Georpia;

0. That “[d]eliberate misinformation was used to instruet Republican poll watchers and
members of the press 10 leave the premises for the night at approximately 10:00 p.m. on
November 3, 2020 at State Farm Arena in Fulton County, Georgia;

Earlicr on the same day, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN sent an ¢-mail to attorneys associated
with the Trump Campaign adimitting his knowledge that at least some of the allegations in the
verified complaint wene not accurate. This (ling was an act of rackeleering activity undey
QG A S 16-14-3(5 ) A)xxil) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 109,

On or about the Ist day of Japuary 2021, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an ¢-
mail to JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN and unindicted co-conspirator Individual 3, whose
identity is known to the Grand Jury. In the e-mail, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO cutlined a
strategy for disrupting and delaying the joint session of Congress on January 6, 2021, the day
prescribed by law for counting votas cast by the duly clected and qualified presidential electors
from Georgia and the other states. This was an ovent act in Furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 110.

On or about the 2nd day of Janvary 2021, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, a Georgia bail
hondsman, placed a telephone call to JEFFREY BOSSERT CLARK and discussed the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Geongia. The telephone call was 63 minutes in
duration. This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act TEE,

On or about the 2ad day of January 2021, JEVVREY BOSSERT CLARK soliciled
Acting United States Attorney General Jeflrey Rosen and Acting United States Deputy Attorney
Generai Richard Donoghue to sign and send a document that falsely slated that the United Siates
Department of Justice had “identilied significant eoncerns thal may have impacted the outcome
of the election in multiple States. mcluding the State ol Georgia,” to Georgta Governor Brian
Kemp, Speaker of the Georpla ouse of Kepresentatives David Ralston, and President Pro
Tempore of the Georgia Senate Butch Miller. This was an overt act in furtherance of the
conspiracy.

Act 112,

On ot about the Znd day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and MARK
RANDALL MEADOWS committed the felony offense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION
OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, in violation of O.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-T & 16-10-1, in Fulton
Counry, Georpia, by unlawfully soliciting, requesting, and importuning Georgia Secretary of
State Orail Raffensperger, a public officer, to engage in conduct constituling the felony offense of
Violation of Oath by Public Officer, O0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by unlawfully altering, unlawfully
adjusting, and otherwise unlawfully influencing the certilied returns for presidential electors for
the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia, in willful and intentional violation of the
terms of the path of said person as prescribed by law, with intent thatl simd person engage in said
conduct. This was an overd acl in [urtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 113,

Om or about the 2ad day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP conumitted the
felony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in violation of O0.C.G.A. § 16-
10-20. in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully making at Jeast one of
the following false statements and representations to Georgia Secretary of State Drad
Raffensperger, Georpia Depury Secrctary of State Jordan Fuchs, and Georgia Secretary of State
General Counsel Ryan Germany:

I, That anywhere from 250,000 to 300,000 ballots were dropped mysteriously
mie the rolls in the November 3, 2020, presidential elcction in Georia,

2. That thousands of people atterpted to vote in the November 3, 20240,
presidential elcction in Georgia and were told they could not because a ballot
had already been cast in their name;

"That 4,502 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Georgis who were not on the voter registration list:

Lad

4. That 904 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidentia) election in
Georgia who were registered at an address thal was a post office box;

That Ruby Freeman was a prefessional vote scammer and a known political
operaiive;

SJI

%. That Ruby Freeman, her daughter, and others were responsible for
fraudulently awarding at least 18,000 ballots to Joseph R. Biden at State Farm
Arenz in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia;

7. Thai close to 5,000 dead people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection in Georgia;

%, That 139% of people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Drtrait:

9. That 200,000 more voles were recorded than the number of people who voted
in the November 3, 202, presidential election in Pennsylvania;

1. That thousands of dead people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential
election in Michigan;

11. That Ruby Freeman stufled the ballot boxes;
12, That hundreds of thousands of ballots had been “dumped™ into Fulton County

and another county adjacent 1o Fulton County in the November 3, 2020,
presidential election in Georgia;
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13. That he wen Lhe November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia by
404,000 votes;

said statemnents being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of Slate and
the Georgia Burcau of Investipation, depariments and ageneies of state govermment. This was ap
act of racketeering activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5} A} xxii} and an overt act in furlherance
ol the conspiracy.

Act 114,

On or about the 3rd day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted [roin the Twitter aceount {@RealDonald Trump, ©1 spoke to Sceretary of State Brad
Raffensperger yesterday aboul Fullon County and voter fraud in Georgia. e was unwilling, or
unable, to answer questions such as the ‘hallots under table® scam, ballot destruction, out of state
*voters’, dead voters, and more. He has no ¢lue!™ This was an overt act in furtherance of the
COMSpracy.
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Act 115,

(3n or about the 3rd day of January 2021, STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE,
HARRISON WILLEAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, and TREVIAN C, KUTTI placed muliiple
telephone calls and sent text messages to each other and (o other individuals involved in the

conspiracy. They include the following:

1. At 7:48 pm,, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone
call to Ruby Froeman, a Fulton County, Georgia, clection worker, that was
unsuccesshal.

2. ACTA49 pan., HARRISON WILLTAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone
call to Ruby Freeman that was unsuccessful.

3. At 7:49 p.m, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed & elephone
call to TREVIAN C. KUTTI.

4. At7:55 pm., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOVYD scnt a lext message to
Ruby IFreeman.

5. At 8:03 pm., TREY¥IAN C. KUTTI placed a lelephone call to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

6. At $:1] pm., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone
call 1o unindicted co-conspirator Individual 23, whose identity is known to the Grand

Jury.

7. AtE18 pm, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a elephone
call to STEPHEN CLIFEGARD LEE.

B. At B:A4Bpm., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a elephone
call to TREYLAN C. KUTTIL

9. At %16 p.m., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone
call to TREYIAN C. KUTTI.

10 AL 933 pom, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a welephone
call to TREVIAN C. KUTTI.

11 At4:50 pom., HARRISON WILLIAM FRESCOTT FLOYD placed 2 elephone
call to STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE.

These were overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 116.

On or about the 4th day of January 2021, TREVIAN C. KUTTI, having been recruited
by HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, traveled from Chicago, [llinois, to Atlanla,
Georgia, and caused a cenain individual, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, to pick her
up from 2 train station in Fulton County, Geosgia, for the purpose of attempting to contact Ruby
TFreeman, a Fulton County, Georgla, clection worker. This was an overt act in {furtherance of the

conspiracy.
Act 117.

On or about the 4th day of January 2021, TREVIAN C. KUTTI traveled to Ruby
Freeman’s home in Cobb Counry, Georgia, and atiempted to contact her but was unsuccessful,
TREVIAN C, KUTTI spoke with Freeman's neighbor and falsely stated that she was a erisis
manager atlempting to “help™ Freeman before leaving I'reeman’s home. This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 118,

On ¢r about the 4th day of January 2021, TREVIAN C. KUTTYE, while in Fulton
County, Georgia, placed a telephone call to Ruby Freeman and stated that Freeman was in
danger. TREVIAN C, KUTTI siated that she could “help” Freeman and requested that Freeman
mect with and speak to her that night at a Cobb County Police Department precinct in Cobb
County, Georgia. This was an over act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 119,

On or about the 4th day of January 202F, TREVIAN C. KUTTI (raveled to a Cobb
County Police Department precinct in Cobb County, Geeorgia, and met with and speke to Ruby
Freeman for approximately onc hour. HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD joincd
the meeting by telephone. TREVIAN C. KUTTI and HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT
FLOYD stated to Freeman that she needed protection and purported to offer her help. This was
an cvert act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 120.

On or about the 4th day of January 2021 STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE,
HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, and TREVIAN C. KUTTI committed the
felony offense of SOLICITATION OF FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in
violation of 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-7 & [6-10-20, in Cobb Counry, Geongia, by soliciting, requesting,
and impormuning Ruby Freeman, a Fulton County, {Georga, election worker, to engage in
conduct constituting the felony offense of [alse Statements and Writings, O.C.G.A. § 16-16-20,
by knowingly and willfullv making a [alse stalerment and representation concerning events at
State Farm Arena in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia, said statement and
representation being within the jurisdiction of the Ofice of the Georgia Secrelary of Stale and
the Georgia Burcau of [nvestigation, departments and agencies of stale goverument, and county
and city law enforcement agencies, with intent that said person enpage in said canduct. This was
an acl of racketeering activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(3)(A)xxii) and an overd act in
furthermnce of the conspiracy.

Act 121.

On or about the 4th day of January 2021 STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE,
HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, and TREVIAN C. KUTTI committed the
felony offense of INFLUENCING WITNESSES, in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-10-

23 B)(1)(A), in Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly and unlawfully engaging in inisleading
conduet toward Ruby Freeman, a I'ulton County, Georgia, clection worker, by stating that she
needed protection and by purporting (o offer her help, with intent to influence her testimony in
an official proceeding in Folton County, Georgia, concerning events at State Farm Areita in the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia. This was an act of racketeering activity
under O.C.GAL § 16-14-3(5)(A)(xxvii} and an overl a¢t in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 122,

On or about the 4th day of January 2021, STEPHEN CLIFFGARR LEE,

HARRISON WILLTAM PRESCOTT FLOYD. and TREVIAN C. KUTTI placed multiple
telephone calls and sent text messages Lo each other and to other individuals invelved in the
conspiracy. They include the following:

1.

=2

Lal

L

0.

At %41 am., STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE placed a telephone call to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 11:24 am., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephoene call
to DAVID JAMES SHAFER.

At 12:25 pm, STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE placed a telephone call to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 12:32 pan., STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE sent a text message to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At £:10 pm., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOUT FLOYD placed a telephone call to
DAVID JAMES SHAFER.

At 10:00 p.m., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone call
to STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE.

At 10:19 pm., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone call
i TREVIAN C. KUTTL

At 10:43 pm., TRE¥YIAN C, KUTTI placed a telephone cal] to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 11:10 p.m., TREVIAN C, KUTTI placed a telephone call io HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 12:12 am. on Januvary 5, 2021, TREVIAN C. KUTTI placed a telephone call to
HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.,

These were over? acls in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 123,

On or about the 4th day of January 2020, JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN placed a
telephone call to Speaker of the Arizona House of Representatives Rusty Bowers and solicited,
requested, and importuned Bowers o unlawfully appoint presidential electors from Arizona.
During the telephone call, Bowers declined to comply with Eastman's request and stated that he
would not risk violating his oath of office. The request was an overt act in furtherance of the
conspiracy.

Act 124,

On or about the 4th day of Janoary 2021, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO sent an -
mail w JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN with the subject “Fwd: Draft 2, with edits” and included
within the body of the e-mail another e-mail that KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO previously
sent 10 RUDOQLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIAN] with the subject “FRIVILEGED ANI
CONFIDENTIAL — Brief notes on ‘President of the Scnals” sirategy.™ In the e-mail, KENNETH
JOHN CHESEBRO outlined multiple strategies for disrupting and delaying the joint session of
Congress on January 6, 2021, the day presciibed by law for counting voles cast by the duly
eleeted and qualified presidential electors from Georgia and the other statcs, and stated that the
outcornes of mny of these straregies were “preferable to allowing the Electornl Count Act to
opetate by its terms.” This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 123,

Cm or about the 4th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and JOHUN
CIIARLES FASTMAN mect wilh Vice President Mike Pence, Chief of $talf to the Vice
President Marc Short, and Counsel to the Vice President Greg Jacob in the Gval Office at the
White House. During the mecting, DONALD JOHN TRUMP and JOHN CHARLES
EASTMAN argued to Pence that he could either reject electoral votes from certain siates or
delay the joint session of Congress on January 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for eounting
voies cast by the duly cleeled and qualified presidentai electors from Georgia and the other
states, for the purpose of allowing certain state legislatures to unlawfully appoint presidential
clectors in favor of DONALD JOHN TRUMP. During the meeting, JOHN CHARLES
EASTMAN admited both options violated the Electoral Count Act. This was an over act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 126,

On or about the Sth day of January 2021, JENNA LYNN ELLIS wmte a memoranduni
titled “Re: Vice President Authority in Counting Lilectors purmsuant to 1.5, Constilution and 3
0.8, Code £§ 5 and 157 to an attorney assosiated with DONALD JOHN TRUMP, The
memorandum outlined a strategy for disrupting and delayving the joint session of Congress on
Japuary 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for counting voles cast by the duly elected and
qualificd presidential eleetors from Georgia and the other stales, and stated, “the Vice President
should begin alphabetically in order of the stafes, and coming first 10 Arizona, not open the
purperted certification, but simply stop the count at that juncture.” This was an overl act in
{urtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 127,

On or about the Sth day of January 2021, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY, STEPHEN
CLIFFGARD LEE, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, TREVIAN C. KU1TTI,
and SCOTT GRAHAM HALL placed multiple telephone calls te each other and to other
individuals involved in the conspiracy. They include the following:

1.

0.

12.

At 11:32 am., STEPHEN CLIFEGARD LEE placed a telephone call to TREVIAN
C. KUTTL

At 12:14 p.m., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD, TREVIAN C,
KUTTI, STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE, and unindicted co-conspirator Individual
23, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, participated in a four-way telephone
call.

At 12:19 pm., SCOTT GRAHAM HALL placed a telephone call to ROBERT
DAVID CHEELEY.

At 12:34 pm., SCOTT GRAHAM HALL placed a telephone call to ROBERT
DAVIDCHEFLEY.

At 1:07 p.m,, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY placed a telcphone call to SCOTT
GRAIIAM HALL,

At 1:09 pm,, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY placed a telephone call to SCOTT
GRAHAM HALL.

At 2:30 p.n., ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY placed a telephone call to HARRISON
WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 2:45 p.m., HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD placed a telephone
call to ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY.

At 3:59 p.m., ROHERT DAVID CHEELEY placed a telephone call w0 SCOTT
GRAITAM HALL.

At 4:42 pm., STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE placed a telephone call to ROBERT
DAVID CHEELEY.

At4:50 p.m,, STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE placed a telephone call to
HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.

At 5:.05 p.m., STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE placed a telephone call to
HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT FLOYD.



13. At 7:19 p.m., TREYIAN C. KUTTI placed a lelephone cal! (0 ROBERT DAVID
CHEELEY.

14, At 7:48 p.m, ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY placed s telephone call ic TREVIAN
C.KUTTL

15, At #:27 p.m., ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY placed a telephone call 10 TREVIAN
C. KUTTIL

16. At 8:49 p.m., ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY placed s telephone call to STEFHEN
CLIFFGARD LEE.

17. At 9:18 p.m., SCOTT GRAHAM HALL placed a telephone call to ROBERT
DAVID CHEELEY.

18. 41931 p.m., TREVIAN C, KUTTT placed « telephone call to ROBERT DAVID
CHEELLEY.

19, At 10:14 p.m., ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY placcd a welephone call to STEPHEN
CLIFFGARD LEE.

20, At 11:16 p.m., ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY placcd a telephone call to TREVIAN
C. KUTTI.

21, At 11:25 p.m., SCOTT GRAHAM HALL placed a telephone call to ROBERT
DAVID CHEELLY.

22, At 1135 pom., ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY, TREVIAN C, KUTTI, and SCOTT
GRAHAM HALL paricipated in a three-way telephone call.

23, At 12:09 am. on Janary 6, 2021, TREYIAN C. KUTTI placed a telephone call to
ROBERT DAYID CHEELLEY.

These were overt acts in furlherance of the conspiracy.
Act 128,
On or about the Sth day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused w© be

twected from the Twitter account @RealDonaldTrump, *“The Vice President has the power (o
reject fraudulently chosen electors.” This was an avert act in furtherance of the conspiracy,
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Aet 139,

On or about the 5th day of January 2021 JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN met with
Chief of 5taff to the Yice President Marc Short and Counsel to the Vice President Greg Jacob for
the purpose of requesting that Vice President Mike Pence reject slates of presidential electors
from Georgia and certain other states during the joint session of Congress on January 6, 2021,
the day prescobed by law for counting votes cast by the duly elected and qualified presidential
electors from Georpia and the other states. This was an overt act in furlherance of the conspiracy.

Act 130,

On or about the 5th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP et with Vice
President Mike Pence in the Oval Office at the White House. During the meeting, DONALD
JOHN TRIUMP stated that Pence had the power to decertify the November 3, 2020, presidential
glection results, thal people cheated. and that Pence wanted to *play by Marquess of Queensberry
rules.” When Pence stated that it was his duty to support and defend the Constitution and that
only Congress had the power to deaide to rgject slates of presidential glectors, DONALD JOHN
TRUMP stated that Pence was naive, implied that he lacked courage, and stated that Pence was
deing “a great disservice.” This was an overt act in Furtherance of the conspiragy.

Arct 131,

On or about the Sth day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP placed a
telephone call to Vice President Mike Pence. During the telephone call, DONALD JOHN
TRUMP and JOHN CIIARLES EASTMAN atempted to persuade Pence 1o reject slates of
presidential electars or retum the slates of presidential cleetors to state legislatures, This was an
overt acl in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 132,

On or about the 5th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP placed a sccond
telephone call fo Vice President Mike Pence. During the telephone call, DONALD JOHN
TRUMP asked Pence if he had received a copy of a letler from a group of Pennsylvania
legislators urging Congress to return the state’s clectoral college votes and siated to Pence, “You
zoita be tough tomorrow.” This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Ack 133,

On or about the 5th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP issucd a
statcmient through the Trump Campaign that falsely siated, “The Vice President and [ are in total
agrecment that the Vice President has the power to act. ... Our Vice President has several options
under the U5, Constilution. He ¢an decertily the results or send them back to the states for
change and certification. He can also decerify the itlegal and corrupt results and send them to
the House of Representatives for the one vote for one state tabulation.” This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 134,

On ot about the 6th day of Januwary 2021, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM placed a
lelephone call to SCOTT GRAHAM HALIL.. Several hours laler, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL
placed a telephone call io CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, During al least one of the phone
calls, they discussed SCOTT GRAHAM HALL’s request to assist with the unlawful breach of
clection equipment at the Coffes County Board of Elections & Registration Office in Colfee
County, Georgia. These were overl acts in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 135,

Cn or about the 6th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP appearcd and
spoke at a rally at the Ellipsc in Washington, D.C. During the rally, DONALD JOHN TRUMP
made false statements concemning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presideniial election in
Georgia and elsewhere, solicited Vice President Mike Pence w disrupt and delay the joint sesston
of Congress on January &, 2021, the day prescribed by law for counting votes cast by the duly
clected and qualified presidential elcetors from Georgia and the other siates, and encouraged
those in atendance at the rally 1o inarch to the United States Capitol. This was an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 136,

On or about the 6th day of January 2021, RUDOLPH WIHLLTAM LOUIS GIULIANI
appeared and spoke at a rally at the Ellipse in Washington, D.C. Duning the rally, RUDOLPH
WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI made false stalements cencemning fraud in the November 3,
2020, presidential election in Georgia and elsewhere and solicited Vice President Mike Pence to
disrupd and deiay the joini session of Congress on January 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for
counting votes cast by the duly elected and qualified presidential clectors from Georgia and the
other states. This was an overl act in furthcrance of the conspiracy.

Act 137,

On or about the Gth day of January 2021, JOHN CHARILES EASTMAN appcared and
spoke at a rally at the Ellipse in Washington, D.C. During the ally, FOHN CHARLES
EASTMAN made false statements concerning fraud in the November 3, 2020, presidential
election and solicited Vice President Mike Pence to discupt and delay the joint session of
Congress on January 6, 2021, the day prescribed by law for counting votes cast by the duly
elected and qualificd presidential electors from Georgia and the other states, This was an overl
act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 138.

On or about the 6th day of Jannary 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP causcd to be
tweeted [rom the ‘lwitler account iRealDonald Irump, “1f Viee President yMike Pence comes
threugh for us, we will win the Presidency. Many States want to decerdify the mistake they made
in cenifying incorrect & even {raudulent numbers in a process NOT approved by their State
Legislatures {which it must be}. Mike can send it back!™ This was an overt act in furtherance of
the conspiracy.

Act 139.

O or about the 6th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP caused to be
tweeted from the Twitter account {@Real Donald Trump, “States want to correet their votes, which
they now know were based on immegularities and fraud, plus cormupt process never received
legislative approval. All Mike Pence has to do i send them back to the States, AN W1 WIN,
Do it Mike, this is a titne for extreme courage!™ This was an overt act in furtherance of the

COnspiracy.
Act 140,

On or about the 6th day of January 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP placed a
telephone call 10 Vice President Mike Pence and solicited him to disrupt and delay the joint
session of Congress on January 6, 2021, the day preseribed by law for counting votes cast by the
duly clected and qualified presidential electors from Georpia and the other states. When Pence
refused, DONALD JOHN TRUMP stated that Pence would “go down as a wimp™ and that
Pence was not protecting the United States. This was an overt act in furtherance of the
conspiracy.



Act 141,

On or about the 6th day of January 2021, JOHN CHABRLES EASTMAN sent un ¢-
mail wo Counsel to the Vice President Greg facob that stated:

“The Senate and House have both violaled the Electoral Count Act this evening —
they debated the Adzona objections for more than 2 hours. Violation of 3 USC
17. And the VP allowed further debate or slatements by leadership afler the
guestion had been voted upon. Vielation of 3 USC 17, And they had that debame
upen motion approved by the VE in violation of the requirement in 3 USC 15 that
aler the vote in the separate houses, ‘they shall immediately again meet.”

So now that the precedent has been set Lhat the Electoral Count Act 1s not guile so
sactosanct as was previously claimed, [ implore you to consider one more
relatively minor violation and adjoumn for 10 days te allow the lepislatures to
finish their investigations, as well as to allow a full forensic audit ol the massive
amount of illegal activity that has cecurred here. (f none of that moves the
needle, at lcast a good portion of the 75 million pcople whe supported President
Trump will have seen a process thet allowed the illepality to be aired.

J’Dh—nl!
This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
Act 142,

On or about the 7th day of January 2021, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM sent a
text message to the Chicf Operations QOfficer of SullivanStrickler LLC with the addiess for the
Douglas Municipal Airpert in Coltee County, Georgia, 10 coordinate picking up SCOTT
GRAHAM HALL from the airport and driving him to the Coffee County Board of Elections &
Registration Office for the purpose of assisting with the unlawfu! breach of election equipment at
the Coltes County Board of Elections & Registration Olfice. This was an act of racketeering
activity under O.C.G AL § 16-14-3(5)(B) and an over! act in [urtherance of the conspiracy.

Aet 143,

On or about the 7th day of Janwary 2021, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL and vnindicted
co-conspirator Individual 24, whose identity 1s known to the Grand Jury, [lew from DeKalb-
Peachtree Aiport in DeKalb County, Georgia, to Douglas Municipal Airport in Coflee County,
Georgia, for the purpose of agsisting with the unlawful breach of election equipment at the
Coffee County Board of Elections & Registration Office. This was an act of rackeleering activity
under O.C.GAL § 16-14-3(3)(3) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 144,

COn or about the Tth day of January 2021, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL.,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM. SCOTT (.RAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMFPTON
committed the felony offense of INTERFERENCE WITH PRINARIES AND ELECTIONS,
in violation ol 0.C.G.A. § 21-2-566. in Coffee County, Georgia, by willfully and unlawfully
tampering with elecironic ballet markers and tabulating machines in Coffee County, Georgia.
This was an overt act in turtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 145,

On or about the 7th day of January 2021, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON
committed the felony oltense of UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OF BALELOTS, in violation of
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-574, in Cofee County, Georgia, by causing cemain metbers ol the conspiracy,
who were not officers charped by law with the care of hallets and who were not persons
cntrusted by any such oflicer with the care of ballots for a purpose required by law. to possess
official ballots outside of the polling place in Coffee County, Georgia. This was an overt act in

furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 146.

On or aboul the Tth day of January 2021, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRALLAM HALL., and MISTY HAMPTON
commiited the felony offense of COMPUTER THEFT, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-9-93(a),
in Colfee County, Georaia, by using a computer with knowledge that such use was without
authority and with the intention of taking and appropriating information, data, and software, the
property of Dominion Voting Systems Corporation in Coffee County, Georgia. This was an act of
racketeering aclivity under O.C.GLAL § 16-14-3(51A)xix) and an overt aci in furtherance of the
CONSPITACY,

Act 147,

On or aboutt the Teh day of January 2021, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON
committed the felony ofense of COMPUTER TRESPASS, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-9-
93{b), in Colfee County, Georgia, by using a computer with knowledge that such use was
without authority and with the intention of removing voter data and Dominion Yoting Systems
Corporation data from said computer in Coffee County, Georgia, This was an act of racketeering
activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(3)(A)(xix) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 148,

On or about the 7th day of Japuary 2021, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL,
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HAILL, and MISTY BAMPTON
committed the felony ofiense of COMPUTER INVASION OF PRIVACY, in violation of
0.C.G.A. § 16-9-93(c). in Colfee County, Georgia, by using a computer with the intention of
cxamining personal voter dala with knowledge that such examination was without authority. This
was an act of rackeleering activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5)(A)(xix) and an overl act in
Furtherance of the conspimacy.

Act 149,

On and between Lhe 6th day of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021,
SINNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM
HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON committed the felony offense of CONSPIRACY TO
DEFRAUD THE STATE, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-21, in Coffee County, Georgia, by
unlawfully conspiring and agrecing to comunit thefl of voter dala, property which was under the
contro] of Georgia Secretary of State Brad Raifensperger, 2 slate officer, in his oflicial capacily.
This was an act of racketeering activity under Q.C.G.A. § 16-14-3{5)(B} and an overt act in
Rirtherance of the conspiracy.

Aet 150,

On or about the 9th day of January 2021, the 10th day of Jannary 2021, the 11th day
of Japuary 2021, and the 13th day of Janwary 2021, unindicled co-conspirator Individual 23,
whose identity is known to the {Grand Jury, unlawfully accessed certain dawa copied from
Dominton Voting Systems equipment at the Colfee Couniy Board of Elections & Registration
Office in Colfoe County, Georgia, by downloading said data from a server maintained by
SullivanStrickler [.I.C. This was an act of racketeering activily under O0.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5)B)
and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 151,

On or about the 9th day of January 2021, the 10th day of January 2021, the [Ith day
of January 2021, the 18th day of January 2021, and the 1%¢h day of Junuary 2021,
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 26, whose ideatity i$ unknpown to the (irand Jury,
unlawfully accessed cerizin data copied from Dominton Voting Systems cquipment at the Coffee
County Board of Elcctions & Registration Office in Coffes County, Georgia, by downleading
said daua from a server maintained by SullivanStrickler LLLC. This was an act of racketecting
activity under O.C.GL A, § 16-14-3(5)(B) and an overl act 10 fofthemanee of the conspiracy,
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Act 152,

On or about the 10th day of January 2021, the 12th day of January 2021, the 13th
day of Japuary 2021, the 25th day of February 2021, and the 26th day of February 2021,
unindicted co-conspirator Individual 27, whaose identity is unknown to the Grand Jury,
unlawfully accessed certain data copicd from Dominion Yoting Systems cyuipment at the Coffec
County Board of Flections & Registration Office in Coflee County, Georgia, by downloading
sind data from a server maintained by SullivanStrickler LLC. This was an act of racketeering
activity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(3)(B) znd an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 153,

On or about the 13th day of January 2021, urundicted co-conspirator Individual 28,
whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, unlawfully accessced cerlain data copied from
Domimion Young Systems equipment at the Coffec County Board of Elections & Registration
Office in Coffee County, Georgia, by downloading said data from a server maintained by
SullivanStrickler L1.C. This was an act of racketeering activity under Q.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(5)B)
and an overt act in funherance of the conspiracy.

Act 154,

On or about the 18th day of Janwary 2021, MISTY HAMPTON allowed unindicted co-
conspirators Individual 25 and Individual 29, whose identities are known (o the Grand Jury, to
access non-public argas of the Collze County Board of Elections & Repistration Office in Coffes
County, Georgia. and facilitated their aceess to Dominion Yoting Systems equipment. This was
an overl act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 155.

On or about the 22nd day of April 2021, unindicted co-conspirator individual 28, whose
identity is known to the Cirand Jury, sent an e-majl to the Chief Operations Officer of
SullivanStrickler LLC directing him to transmit all data copicd froru Dominion Yoting Systems
equipmment at the Coffee County Board of Elections & Registration Office in Coffee County,
Georgia, to unindicted co-conspirzlor Individual 30, whose identity is known to the Grand Jury,
an attomey associated with SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL and the Trump Campaign. This
was an act of racketeering aclivity under O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3(3) 13} and an overt act in
furtheranee of the conspiracy.
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Act 156.

On or about the 17th day of September 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP commiited
the felony offense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATIONM OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER,
in violation of OLC.GLAL §8 16-4-7 and 16-10-1, in Fulton County, Geargia, by unlawfully
soliciting, requusiing, and imnportuning Georngla Secretary of Slare Drad Raffensperzer, a public
officer, to cngage in conduct constituting the felony offense of Yiolation of Oath by Public
Officer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by unlawfully “decentifying the Election, or whalever the correct
legal remedy 15, and announce the true winner,” in willful and intentiopal violation of the 1erms
of the cath of said person as prescribed by law, with intent that said person engape in said
conduct. ‘This was an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.

Act 157.

On or about the 17th day of September 2021, DONALD JOHN TRUMP commitied the
felony offense ol FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in violation of O.C.G.AL § 16-
10-20, in Fulton County, Georala, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawifully making the following
false statemnent and representation to Georgia Secrelary of State Brad Raffensperger:

. “As stated to you previously, the number of false and/or irregular voles is far greater than
needed to change the Georgia election result”;

said slatement being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, departmenls and agencies of slate government, and county
and city law enforcement agencies. This was an act of rmcketeering activity under O.C.G.A, § 16-
14-3{5) A)Xxxii) and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 158,

On or about the 25th day of April 2022, DAVID JAMES SHAFER commiticd the
telony offense of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-
10-20, i Fulton County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully making at least one of
the following false statemenls and reproscntations in the presence of Fulton County Distnct
Atlorney’s Office mvestigators:

1. That he “attended and convencd” the December 14, 2020, meeting of T'nimp presidential
¢leetor nominees in Fulton County, Georgia, but that he did net “call each of the
individual members and notify them of the megting or make any of the other preparations
necegsary for the meeting™;

I_:x.i

That a court reporter was not present at the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump
presidential elector nominges in Fulton Counry, Georgia;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Fulton County District Atorney’s Office, a
department and apency of the goverament of a county of this state. This was an act of
racketeering activity under O.C.G.AL § 16-14-3(3)(A)xx11) and an overt act in furtherance of the

conspiracy.
Act 159,

On or about the 7th day of May 2022, SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL made at least
one of the following false statements and representations in & swom deposition with the United
States House of Representatives Selcet Cornmittes to Investigate the Janvan $th Attack on the
Uniled States Capitol:

1. That she “didn’t have any role in really setting up™ efforts 10 aceess voting machines in
Coftee County, Georgia, or Antrim County, Michipan;

[-2

That she was aware there was an “etforl by some people” to get aceess 1o voting -
machines in Georzia but that she did not “know what happencd with that™ and did not
“remember whether that was Rudy or other lolks.”

This was at overl act in funtherance ol the conspiracy.
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Act 160,

On or about the 1st day of September 2022, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM

commiticd the felony oflense of PERJURY, in violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-10-70{a), in Houston
County, Georgia, try knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully making at lcast one of the following
false slatements in a deposition in the matter of Curling v. Raffensperger, Case 1:17-cv-02989-
AT in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, 2 judicial proceeding,
after having been ailministered a lawful oath:

1.

That she was only present at the Coflee County Board of Flections & Registration Otlice
in Coffee County, Georgia, for “just a few minutes™ on Janwary 7, 2021;

That she only “walked info the front part” of the Coffee County Poard of Elections &
Registration Office on Januwary 7, 2021, and “didn’t go into the oflice™;

That she had “no idea” if employees of SullivanSirickler met Ene Chaney at the Coffec
County Board of Eiections & Registration Office on January 7, 2021;

That she did not see Misty Hampilon at the Coftee County Board of Eleetions &
Registration Office on January 7, 2021;

That her only interaction with Scott Hall at the Coffec County Board of Flections &
Registration Office on January 7, 2021, was meeting him, speaking to him outside of the
offiee, and then leaving the office;

That she did not see Scott [all speak to anyone other than herselt at the Collee County
Noard of Elections & Registration Office on Janvary 7, 2021,

said statemnents being material to the aceused’s own involvement in the January 7, 2021,
uniawful breach of election equipment at the Coffee County Board of Elcctions & Registration
Ofhee and to the accused’s communications with olhers invelved, the issues in question. This
was att act of racketleering activity under Q.C.G.A. § 10-14-3(5) A)xxv) and an overt act in
furtherance of the conspiracy.
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Act 161,

On or about the 15th day of September 2022, ROBERT DAVID CHHEELLEY
committed the felony offense of PERJURY, in violation of 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-T0{a), in Fulton
County, Georgia, by knowingly, willfully, and unlawfully making at least onc of the following
false staternents before the Fullon County Special Purpose Grand Jury, a judicial proceeding,
afler having been administered a lawful oath:

I. That he was unaware of the December 14, 2020, mectmg of Trump presidential glector
namineess in Fulton County, Georgia, until after the meeting had already laken place;

2. That he had no subslantive conversalions with anyone concerning the December 14,
2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton County, Georpia, until
after the meeting had afready taken place;

That he never suggested to anvone that the Trump presidential clector nominees in
CGreorzia shonld meetl on December 14, 2020,

HF

4, That the only communication he had with John Fastman concemning the November 3,
2020, presidential election was for the purpose of connecting Eastman to Georgia Senator
Brandon Beach and unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity is known to
the Grand Jury, for possible {egal represenlation,

5. That he never worked to connect John Eastman with any Georgia legisiators other than
Georgia Scnator Brandon Deach and unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whosc
identity is knowr to the Grand Jury;

said slatements being material to the accused’s own involvement in the December 14, 2020,
meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton County, Georpla, and to the aceused’s
communications with others involved in the meeting, the issues in question. This was an act of
rackeieering activiry under O.C.GLA,L § 16-14-3(5)}A)xxv) and an oved act in furtherance of the
CONSPiracy.

The acts set forth above were commined in furtherance of the conspiracy alleged above
and had the same and similar intents, results, accomplices, victims, and methnds of commission
and otherwise were interrelaled by distinguishing characteristics and were not isolated acts,
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COUNT 2 of 41

And the Grand Jurars aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIAN], JOHN CHARLES
EASTMAN, JENNA LYNN ELLIS, and RAY STALLINGS SMITH 111 wiih the offense of
SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, O.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-7
& 16-10-1, for the said accused, individually and as persons congemed in the commission of a
crime, and togcther with unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Tulton and Stale of
Georgia, on the 3rd day of December 2020, unlawfully soliciled, requested, and imporiuned
certain public officers then sceving as elected members of the Georgia Senate and present at a
Senate Judiciary Subcommittee mecting, including unindicted co-censpirator Individual 8,
whose identity is known (o the Grand Jury, Senalors Lee Anderson, Brandon Beach, Matt Brass,
{reg Dolezal, Steve Gooch, Tyler Harper, Bill Heath, Jen Jordan, John F. Kennedy, William
Ligon, Elena Parent, Michael Rhett, Carden Summers, and Blake Tillery, te engage in conduct
canstituting the lelony offense of Vialation of Qalh by Public Officer, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by
unlawfully appointing presidential eleclors from the State of Georyia, in willful and intentional
violation of the terms of the oath of said persons as preseribed by law, with intent that said
persons cngage in said conduct, said date being a malerial element ol the offense, contrary to the
laws of said Slate, the pood order, peace and dignity thereol;

COUNT 3 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
chanpe and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI with the ofense of FALSE
STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the sajd accused, in the County
of Fulton and Siate of Georgia, on ar about the 3rd day of December 2020, knowingly, willfully,
and unlawfully made a1 lcast one of the following false slatements and represeniations to
members of the Georgia Senate present at a Senate Judiciary Subcommittes meeting:

1. That at least 96,600 mail-in ballots were counted in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection in Georgia, despite there being no record of thase ballots having been retumed ta
a county elections office;

2. That a Dominion Voting Systems machine used in the November 3, 2020, presidential
election in Antrim County, Michigan, mistakenly recorded 6,000 votes for Joseph R
Biden when the votes were actually cast for Donald Trump,

said slatemeants heing within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Geomgia Bureau of [nvestigation, departments and ageneies of state government, and county
and city law enforcement ageneies, contrary to the laws of said Siate, the pood order, peace and
dignity thercof;
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COUNT 4 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behall of the citizens of Georgia, do

champe and accuse RAY STALLINGS SMITH I with the offcnse of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, O0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the smd accused, in the County of I'ulton and
State of Georpia, on or about the 3rd day of December 2020, knowingly, willfully, and
unlawfully made at leasi one of the following falsc statcments and representations to members of
the (Georgia Senate present at a Senate Judiclary Subcommitiee meeting:

l.

That 2,506 felons voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in
Georgia;

That 66,248 underage people illegatly registered to vote before their seventcenth birthday
prior to the November 3, 2020, presidential election i Georgia;

That at lcast 2,423 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Georgia who were not listed as regisiered 1o vote;

That 1,043 people voled in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in Georgia who
had illegally registercd to vote using a post ofTice box;

That 10,315 or more dead people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidentiai election in
Georgia;

That Fulten County election workers at State 1'arm Arena erdered poll watchers and
members of the media 1o leave the 1abulation area on the night of November 3, 2020, and

conunued to operate afler ardering cveryone to leave;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Qffice of the Geergia Secratary of State and
the Georgia Burcau of Investigation, depariments and ageneies of state government, and county
and city law enforcement agencics, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof;
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COUNT 5 of 41

And the Grand Jurers aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georga, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP with the offense of SOLICITATION OF
VIOLATION OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, O.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, for the
said accused, in the County of Fulton and State of Georpia, on or about the 7th day of
December 2020, unlawfully solicited, requested, and importuned Speaker of the Georgia Housc
of Representatives David Ralston, a public officer, to engage in conduct constituting the felony
offense of Violation of Oath by Public Officer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by calling for a special
session of the Georgia General Assembly for the purpose of unlawlully appointing presidential
electors from the State of Georgia, in willui and inlentional violation of the terms of the oath of
said person as prescribad by law, with intent that said person engage in said conduct, contrary to
the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thercof;

COUNT & of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charpe and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI and RAY 5TALLINGS
SMETH III with the offense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION OF OATH BY PUBLIC
OFFICER, O0.C.G.A, §§ 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, for the said accused, individually and as persons
congermed in the commission of a erime, and together with unindicted co-conspirators, in the
County of l‘ulton and State of Georgia, on the 10th day of December 2020, unlawfully solicited,
requested, and imponuned cermain public officers then serving as clected members of the Georgla
House of Representatives and present at a House Governmental Atfairs Commitiee meeting,
including Representatives Shaw Blackimon, Jon Bums, Barry Fleming, Todd Jones, Bee Nguyen,
Mary Margaret Oliver, Alan Powell, Renitta Shannon, Robert Trammell, Scot Tumer, and Bruce
Williamson, to engage in conduct constituting the felony ofTense of Violation of Oath by Public
Officer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by unlawtully appointing presidential electors from the State of
Georgia, in willful and intentional viclation of the terms of the oath of said persons as prescbed
by law, with intent that said persens engage in said conduct, said date being a material element of
the offense, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thereef;
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COUNYT 7 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do

charge and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI with the offense of FALSE
STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said accused, in the County
of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the 10th day of December 2020, knowingly,
wiltfully, and unlawfully madc at lzast one of the foliowing false statemenis and represcnations
to members of the Geonpla House of Representatives present at a louse Governmental Afairs
Commitiee meeting:

L.

fal

That it is quite clear from the State Farm Arena video from November 3, 2020, that
Fulton County election workers were stealing votes and that Georgia officials were
covering up a crime in plain sight;

That at State Farm Arena on November 3, 2020, Democratic officials “got rid of all of the
repariers, all the observers, anyone that coonldn™ be trusted,” used the excuse of a
watermain break, cleared out the voting area and then “went about their dirly, crooked
business™;

That between 12,000 and 24,000 ballots were illegally counted by Fulton Counrty election
workers at State Farm Arena on November 3, 2020,

That in Michigan, there were 700,000 more ballots counted than were sent out to volers
in the November 3, 2020, presidential election, which was accounted for by quadruple
counting ballots;

That Ruby Freeman, Shaye Moss, and an unidentified man were “quite obviously
surreptitiously passing around USB ports as if they're vials of heroin ot cocaine™ at State
Farm Arena to be used to “infiltrate the crooked Dominion voting machines™;

That 96,600 mail-in ballots were counted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election
in Georgia, despite there being no record of those baliots having been returned to a
county elections office;

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Sccretary of Sute and
the Georgia Burean of Investigation, departments and agencics of state povemnment, and county
and city law enforcement agencies, contrary to the laws of sald Stale, the goad order, peace and
digrity thereof:
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COUNT 8 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Geoneia, do
charge and accuze DAYID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL, and
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM with the ollcnse of IMPERSONATING A PURLIC
OFFICER, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-23, for the said accused, individually and as persons concerned in
the conunission of a erime, and topether with unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton
and State of Georgia, on or about the 1dth day of December 2020, unlawfully falsely held
themselves out as the duly elected and qualified presidential electors from the Sulte of Georgia,
public oflicers, with intent to mislcad the President of the United States Senate, the Archivist of
the United States, the Georgia Secretary of State, and the Chief Judge of the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia into believing that they actually were such
officers by placing in the United States mail to said persons a document titled “CERTIFICATE
OF THE ¥O'11:8 OiF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA,” contrary to the laws of said
Siate, the good order, peace and dignity thereof;

COUNT % of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIVULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO, RAY STALLINGS
SMITH 111, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY, and MICHAFEL A. ROMAN with the ofcnse of
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT IMPERSONATING A PUBLIC OFFICER, O.C.G.A_ §§
16-4-8 & 16-10-23, for the said accuscd, individually and as persons concerned in the
commission of a come, and together with indicted and unindicted co-conspirators, in the County
of Fulton and State of Georgia, on and between the 6th day of December 2020 and the 14th
day of December 2020, unlawfully conspired to cause certain individuals to falsely hold
themselves out as the duly elected and qualified presidential electors from the State of Georgia,
public efficers, with intent w mislead the President of the United States Sepate, the Archivist of
the United Statcs, the Georpia Secrclary of Slate, and the Chief Judge of the United States
District Court for the Northem District of Georgia into belicving that they actually were such
officers;

And the Defendants named in Count 8, acting as co-conspitators, as described above and
incorporated by reference as if fully set forlh hergin, falsely held themselves out as said public
officers by placing in the United States mail to said persons a document titled “CERTIFICATE
OF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GECRGIA™ in Fullon County, Georgia,
which was an overl act to effect the abject of the conspiracy, contrary (o the laws of said State,
the good order, peace and dignity thercof;
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COUNT 10 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charpe and accuse DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL, and
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM with the offense of FORGERY IN THE FIRST
DEGREE, 0.C.GG.A. § 16-9-1(b), for the said accused, individually and as persons concemed in
the commission of a crime, and together with unindicted co-conspirators, in the Counry of Fulton
and State of Georgla, on or about the 14¢h day of December 2020, untawfally and with the
intent ¢ defraud, knowingly made a document titled “CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THE
2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA,” a writing other than a check, in such manner that the
writing as made purports to have been made by anthority of the duly elected and qualified
presidential electors from the State of Georgia, wha did not give such authority, and utlered and
delivered said document to the Archivist of the United States, contrary 1o the laws of said State,
the good order, peace and dignity thercof,

COUNT 11 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgig, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBROQO, RAY STALLINGS
SMITH III, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY, and MICHAEL A. ROMAN with the offense of
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FORCGERY IN THE FIRST DEGREE, 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-8
& 16-9-1(b), for the said accused, individually and as persens concemned in the commission of 2
crime, and together with indicted and unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and
State of Georgia, on and between the 6th day of December 20240 and the 14th day of
December 2020, unlawfully conspired, with the intent fo defraud, to knowingly maie a
document titled “CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM
GEORGIA,” a wrifing other than a check, in such manner that the writing as made purports to
have becn made by authority of the duly clected and qualified presidential electors from the State
of Georgia, who did not give such aythority, and to utter and deliver said document to the
Archivist of the Uniled States:

And the Defendants named m Count [0, acting as co-conspirators, as descnbed above
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, made said document in Fulton County,
Georgia, and ufiered and delivered said document to the Archivist of the Umnited States m Fullon
County, Georgia, which were overt acts to effect the object of the conspimcy, contrary to the
laws of smd State, the pood arder, peace and dignity thereof;
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COUNT 12 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforcsaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgls, do
charge and accuse DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL, and
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM with the olTense of FALLSE STATEMENTS ANI
WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the saild accused, individually and as persons concemed
in the commission of a crime, and together with unindicied co-conspirators, in the County of
Iulton and Slate of Georgia, on or about the 14th day of December 2021, knowingly, willkully,
and unlawfully made and used a false document titled “CERTITICATE OF THE VOTLS OF
THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEGRGIA,” with knowledge that said document contained the
false statement, “WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, being the duly elected and qualified Eleeters for
President and Vice President of the United States of America from the State of Georgia, do
hereby centify the following,” satd document being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the
Georgia Secretary of Stale and the Office ol the Governor of Georgia, deparuments and agencies
of state government, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thereof;

COUNT 13 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP, RUDOLIH WILLIAM LOUIS CIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO, RAY STALLINGS
SMITH IiI, ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY, and MICHAEL A. ROMAN with the offense of
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A, §§ 10-
4-8 & 16-10-20, for the said accused, individually and as persons concerned in the commission
of a crime, and together with indicted and unindicted co-conspirators, in the Countly of Fulton
and Slate of Georgia, on and beiween the 6th day of December 2020 and the 14th day of
December 2020, unlawlully conspired to knowingly and willfully make and use a false
document titled “CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THC 2020 ELECTORS FROM
GEORGIA,” wilh knowledge that said document contained the false statement, “WE, THE
[INDERSIGNIEIY, being the duly elected and qualified Electors for President and Vice President
of the United States of America from the State of Georgia, do herchy certily the following,” said
document being within ihe jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgla Secretary of State and the
Office of the Governor of Georgia, departments and agencics of state government;

And the Defendants named in Count 12, acting as co-copspirators, as described above
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, made and used said document in Fulton
County, Georgia, which were overt acts to effect the object of the conspiracy, contrary ta the
laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thercof;
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COUNT 14 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DAVID JAMES SHAFER, SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL, and
CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM with the offense of CRIMINAL ATTEMPT TO
COMMIT FILING FALSE DOCUMENTS, 0.C.G.A. §8§ 16-d4-1 & 16-10-20.1(b)(1). for the
said accused, mdividually and as persons concermned in the commission of a crime, and together
with unindicted co-congpirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the
14th day of Decemher 2020, uniawfully, with intent to commit the erime of Filing False
Documents, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20.1(h)(1), placed in the United States mail a document titled
“CERTIFICATL OF THE VOTES OF THE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA,"” addressed
to Chref Judge, U.S. Disinct Courl, Northern District of Georgia, 2188 Richard I). Russell
Federal Qffice Building and 1.5, Courthouse, 75 Ted Tumer Drive, W, Atlanta, GA 30303, a
substantial step toward the comiission of Filing Faise Documents, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20.1{b)(1},
with intent to knowingly file, enter, and record said document in a court of the United Stales,
having reason to know that said document contained the materially false statement, “WE, THE
UNDERSIGNED, being the duly elected and qualified Electors for President and Vice President
of the United States of Ameriea from Lhe State of Georgia, do hereby cenify the following,”
contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thereaf;

COUNT 15 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georpia do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP, RUDOLPII WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO, RAY STALLINGS
SMITH III, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY, and MICHAFL A. ROMAN with the offense of
CONSFIRACY TO COMMIT FILING FALSE DOCUMENTS, 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-8 & 16-
10-20.1(b)(1), for the said accused, individually and as persons concerned in the commisgion of
3 crime, and together with indicted and unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and
State of Georgin, on and between the 6th day of December 2020 and the 14th day of
December 2020, unlawfully conspired to knowingly lile, enter, and record a document titled
“CERTIFICATE OF THE VOTES OF THIE 2020 ELECTORS FROM GEORGIA,” in a courl of
the United Stales, having reason to know that said docurnent contained the materially false
statement, “WE, TI1E UNDERSIGNED, being Lhe duly eleeted and qualified Eleclors for
President and Vice President of the United Siates of America from the State of Georgia, do
hereby cernfy the following™,

And the Defendants named in Count 14, acting as ¢o-conspiralors, as described above
and incorporaled by reference as if fully set forth herein, placed in the United Siates mail said
document, addressed to Chief Judge, U.S. District Courl, Northern District of Georgiz, 2188
Richard D. Russell Federal Office Building and 115, Courthouse, 75 Ted Turner Drive, SW,
Atlanta, GA 30303, in Folton County, Georgin, which was an overt act to effect the object of the
conspiracy, contrary 1o the laws of said State, the good order, peace and digmity thereof;
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COUNT 16 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georpia, do
charge and accuse DAVID JAMES SHAFER and SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL with
the offense of FORGERY IN THE FIRST DEGREE, 0.C.G.A. § 16-9-1(b}, for the said
accused, individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and togcther with
unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the 14th
day of December 2020, unlawfully and with the intent to defraud, knowingly made a document
titled “RE; Notice of Filling of Electaral College Vacancy,”™ a writing other than a check, in such
manner that the writing as made purports to have been made by the authority of the duly elected
and qualified presidential electors from the State of Georgia, who did not give such authority,
and utlered and delivered said document to the Archivist of the United States and the Office of
the Govemer of Georgia, contrary lo the laws of sald State, the good order, peace and dignity
thereof;

COUNT 17 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the eitizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALDY JOHN TRUMP. RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTM AN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO, RAY STALLINGS
SMITH 1L, ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY, and MICHALL A, ROMAN with the oflense of
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FORGERY IN THE FIRST DEGREE, 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-8
& 16-9-1(b), tor the said accused, individually and as persons concemed in the comumission of a
crime, and together with indicted and unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and
State of Georgia, on and between the 6th day of December 2020 and the 14th day of
December 2020, unlawiully conspired, with the intent to defraud, to knowingly make a
document titled “IRE: MNotice of Filling of Eilectoral College Yacancy,” a writing other than a
check, in such manner thai the writing as made purports to have been made by the authority of
the duly ¢lected and gualified presidential electors from the State of Georgia, who did not give
such autharity, and to uner and deliver sind document to the Archivist of the United States and
the Office of the Governor of Georyis;

And the Defendants named in Count 16, acting as co-conspirators, as descnbed above
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, made said document in Fulion County,
Georgia, and utiered and delivered said document 1o the Archivist of the United States and the
Office of the Governor of Georgia in Fulton County, Georgia, which were ovenl acts to effect the
object of the conspiracy, contrary to the laws of said State, the oood order. peace and dignity
thereol;
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COUNT 18 of 41

And the Grand Jurcrs aforeszid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgig, do
charpe and accuse DAVID JAMES SHAFER and SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL. with
the offensc of FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said
acewsed, individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and together with
unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the 14th
day of December 2020, knowingly, willfully, and untawully made and used a false document
titled “RE: Notice of Filling of Llectoral Collepe Vacancy,” with knowledge that said document
containgd the falsc statements that DPAVID JAMES SHAFER was Chaimman of the 2020
(Georgla Electoral College Meeting and SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL was Secretary of
the 2020 Georpia Electoral College Meeting, said document being within the jurisdiction of the
OlMhce of the Georgia Secretary of State and the Office of the Govemor of Georgia, depariments
and agencics of slate govermncant, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thercof;

COUNT 19 of 41

And the Grand Jurars aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP, RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI,
JOHN CHARLES EASTMAN, KENNETH JOHN CHESEBRO. RAY STALLINGS
SMITH M1, ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY 2nd MICHAEL A. ROMAN with the ollense of
CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT FALSE STATEMENTS AN WRITINGS, O.C.G.AL §§ 16-
4-8 & 16-10-20, for the said accused, individually and as persans concerned in the commission
of a crime, and together with indicted and unindieted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton
and Slate of Georgia, on and between the 6th day of December 2020 and the 14th day of
December 2020, unlawfully conspired to knowingly and willfully make and usc a false
document titled “RE: Notice of Fillimg of Electoral Collepe Vacaney,” with knowledge that said
dovument contained the false statements that DAVID JAMES SHAFER was Chairman of the
2020 Georgia Electoral College Meeting and SHAWN MICAH TRESHER STILL was
Scerelary of the 2020 Georgia Electoral College Meeting, said document being within the
Jurisdiction of the OlMice of the Georgia Sceretary of State and the Oflice of the Guovernor of
Georgia, departments and agencies of state govemment;

And the Defendants named in Count 1§, acting as co-conspirators, as descrbed above
and incorporated by reference as it fully sot forth herein, made and wsed said document in Fulton
County, Georgia, which were overt acts Lo elTect the object of the conspiracy, contrary to the
laws of said Siate, the good order, peace and dignity thereof;
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COUNT 2 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the cilizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE with the ofTense of CRTMINAL
ATTEMPT TO COMMIT INFLUENCING WITKNESSES, O.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-1 & 16-10-
43(DX1)(A), for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and Stale of Georgia, on the 14¢h day
of December 2020, unlawliully, with intent to commit the crime of Influencing Witnesscs,
Q.C.G.AL § 16-10-93(b)( 1){ A), traveled to the home of Ruby Freeman, a Fulton County,
Cicorgia, clection worker, and spoke to her neighbor, a substantial step toward the commiission of
Influgncing Witnesses, O.C.G A § 16-10-93(b} 1 )} A), with inlent Lo knowingly enpage in
misleading conduct toward Ruby Freeman, by purporting to ofTer her help, and with intent to
influence her testimony in an official procceding in Fulton County, Georgia, concerning cvents
at State Farm Arena in the Novewmber 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia, said date being a
matetial element of the offense, contrary 10 the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof:

COUNT 21 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aleresaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse STEPHEN CLIFFGARID LEE with the o[ense of CRIMINAL
ATTEMPT TO COMMIT INFLUENCING WITNESSES, O.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-1 & 16-10-
93{b)(1}(A), for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and Siate of Georgia, on the 15th day
of December 2020, unlawfully, with intent o commit the erime of InfAuencing Witnesses,
0.CGA §16-10-93(b){ I A), traveled to the home of Ruby Freeman, a Fultun County,
Georgia, election worket, and knocked on her door, a substantial step loward (he commission of
Influcneing Witnesses, O.C.GA § 16-10-93(b) 1) A}, with intent to knowingly engage in
misleading conduct toward Ruby Freeman, by purporting to offcr her help, and with intent to
intluence her testimony in an official proceeding in Fulton County. Geurgla, concerning events
at State Farm Arena in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia, said dale being a
material elemeni ol the offense, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof,
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COUNT 22 of 41

And the (rand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the ¢itizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse JEFFHEY BOSSERT CLARK with the oflense of CRIMINAL ATTEMPT
TO COMMIT FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. 8 16-4-1 & 16-10-20,
for the said accused, individually and as a person concemed in the commission of a erime, and
together with unindieted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on and
between the 28th day of December 2020 and the 2nd day of January 2021, unlawfully, wiih
intent to commit the crime of [alse Statements and Writings, O.C.G.A, § 16-10-20, knowingly
and willfully made a false writing and documcent knowing the same to contain the false siatement
that the United States Department of Justice had “identified significant concerns that may have
impacted the outcome of the clection in multiple States, ineluding the State of Georgia,” said
staternent being within the jurisdiction of the OMice of the Georgia Secrelary of State and the
Georgia Bureau of Investigation, depanments and agencics of stale government, and county and
city law enforcement agencies;

And, on or about the 28th day of December 2020, the said accused sent an c-tnail to
Acting Unficd States Atlorney (reneral Jeffrey Rosen and Acting United States Deputy Attorney
General Richard Donoghoe and requested authorization to send said False writing and document
to (reorgia Governor Brian Kemp, Speaker of the Georgia House of Representatives David
Ralsion, and Fresident Pro Tempore of the Georgia Senate Butch Miller;

And, on or about the 2Znd day of January 2021, the said aceused met with Acting United
Slates Attorney General Jeffrey Rosen and Acting United States Depury Attorney (eneral
Richard Donoghue and requested authotization to send said false weiting und document to
Geargia Governor Brian Kemp, Speaker of the Georgia House of Representatives David Ralslon,
and President Pro Tempore of the Geargia Senate Buteh Miller,

And said acts constituted substantial steps toward the commission of False Statements
and Writinps, O.C.G.AL § 10-10-20, and said conduct committed cutside the state of Geomia
constituted an attemnpt to comimit a crime within the state of Georgia, pursvant 10 O.C.G.A. § 17-
2-1(bY(2}, contrary to the laws of satd State, the good order, peace and dignity thereof;
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COUNT 23 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
cliarge and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI, RAY STALLINGS SMITH
II1, and ROBERT DAYID CHEELEY with the offense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION
QF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, O.C.(G.A. §§ 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, for the said accused,
individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and together with
unindicted ¢o-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and Slate ol Georpia, on the 30th day of
December 2020, unlawiully solicited, requested, and tmportuned certain public officers then
serving as elected members of the Georgia Senare and present at a Senate Judiciary
Subcommittee meeting, including unindicted co-conspirator Individual §, whose identity 1s
known to the Grand Jury, Senaters Brandon Beach, Bill Heath, William Ligen, Michael Rhbett,
and Blake Tillery, to engage in conduct constituting the felony offense of Violation of Oath by
Public Officer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-1, by unlawfully appointing presidential electors from the State
of Georyia, in willful and Intentional violation of the kerms of the oath of said persons as
prescribed by law, with intent that said persons engage in said conduct, said date being 2 material
element of the offense, contrary 1o the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignaty
thereof:

COUNT 24 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse RUDOLPH WILLIAM LOUIS GIULIANI with the offense of FALSE
STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said aecused, in the County
of Fulton and State of Georgla, on or about the 30th day of December 2020, knowangly,
willfully, and untawfully made at least one of the following false statcments and represenlations
to members of the Georgia Senate present at a Senale Judiciary Subcommittce meeting:

1. That Fulton County election workers fraudulently counted certain ballots as many as five
times at Stale [Ffarm Arena on November 3, 2021

T

That 2,500 felons voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
(reongia;

3. That 10,313 dead people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential eleclion in Geogia;
said slatements being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgla Secrctary of State and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, depariments and agencies of state government, and county

and city law enforcement agencies, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
digmity thereof!
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COUNT 25 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citivens of Geergia, do
charge and accuse RAY STALLINGS SMITH I with the offense of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, O.C.GLA. § 16-10-20, for the said aceused, in the County of Fulten and
State of Georzia, on or about the 30th day of December 202(, knowingly, willfully, and
unlawfully made at Teast one of the following False statements and representations to membeis of
the Georgia Senate present at a Senate Judiciary Subcommitiee meeting:

I. That Georgia Secretary of State General Counsel Ryan Germany stated that his office had
sent letlers to 8,000 people who voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential
glection and told them not to vote in the January 5, 2021, unolf election;

2. That the Georgia Secretary of State admitted “that they had a 90% accuracy rate” in the
Nowvember 3, 2020, presidential election and that “there’s still a 10% margin that's not
arcurale™;

said statemuents being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Georgia Dureau of Investigation, depariments and agencies of state povermment, and county
and city law enforcement agencies, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof,

COUNT 26 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY with the offense of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and
State of Geargia, on or about the 30th day of Decemhber 2020, knosvingly, willfully, and
unlawfully made at least one of the foilowing false statements and representations to members of
the Georpia Senafe present at a Senate Judiciary Subcommintee meeting:

I. That poll watchers and media at State Farm Arena were told late in the evening of
November 3, 2020, that the vole count was being suspended unti] Lhe next morming and to
go home because of “a major watermain break™;

2. Thai Fulton County clection workers at State Farm Arena “voted”™ the same ballots “over
and over again™ on November 3, 2020

said statements being within the jurisdiction of the Ofhice of the Georgia Secretary of State and
the Geergia Bureay of Investipation, departiments and agencics of state govemnient, and county
and city law enforcement agencics, contrary to the Taws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof:

85



COUNT 27 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP and JOMN CHARLES EASTMAN with the
offense of FILING FALSE DOCUMENTS, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20.1(b){1). for the said accused,
individually and as persons ¢cencemed in the commission of a crime, and together with
unindicled co-conspirators, il the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the 31st
day of December 2020, knowingly and unlawhally filed a document titled “VERITIED
COMPLAINT FOR EMERGENCY INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELILE” in the
matter of Trump v. Kemp, Case 1:20-cv-05310-MHC, in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia, a court of the United Siales, having reasen to know that said
documertt contamed at least onc of the following materially false statements:

1. That “as many as 2,506 felons with an uncompleted sentence”™ votod illegally in the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia;

2. That "at leasi 66,247 underage™ people voted illegally in the November 3, 2020,
presidential clection in Georgia;

3. That “at least 2.423 individuale™ voted illepally in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection in Geotgia “who were not listed in the Stale’s records as having been registered

to vole™;

4. That *at least 1,043 individoals™ voted illegally in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection “who had illepally registered to vole using a postal office box as their
habitation™;

5. That “as many ag 10,315 or more” dead people voled in the November 3, 2020,
presidential election in Georpia,

6. That “[d]eliberate misinformation was used to instruct Republican poll watchers and
members of the press to leave the premises for the night at approximately 10:00 p.m. on
November 3, 20207 at State Farm Arena in Fulton County, Georgia;

contrary 1o the laws of satd State, the good order, peace and dignity thereof,
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COUNT 28 of 41

And the Grand Jurers aforcsaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP and MARK RANDALL MEADOWS with the
offense of SOLICITATION OF VIOLATION OF OATH BY FUBLIC OFFICER, O0.C.(G.A,
88 16-4-7 & 16-10-1, fur the said accused, individually and as persons concermned 1n the
commission of a crime, and together with unindicted co-conspirators, in the Counry of Fulton
and Slate of Georgia, on or about the 2rd day of Januvary 2021, unlawlully solicited, requested,
and importuned Georgia Sceretary of State Brad Ralfensperyer, 2 public officer, to cagage in
conduct constituting the lelony offense of Viclation of Gath by Public Officer, 0.C.G.A. § 16-
13-1, by unlawfully aitering, unlawfully adjusting, and otherwise unlawfully influencing the
cerlified returns for presidential electors for the November 3, 2020, presidential election in
Georgia, in willful and intenttonal violation of the terms of the oath of sald person as prescribed
by law. with intent that said person engage in said conduct, contrary to the laws of said State, the
good order, peace and dignity thereof;

&7



COUNT 29 0f 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charpe and aecuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP with the offense of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, 0.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and
State of Georgia, on or about the Znd day of January 2021, knowtngly, willfully, and unfawfully
made at lcast one of the following false statements and represenlations to (teorgia Secretary of
State Drad Rafenspenzer, Georgia Deputy Secretary of State Jordan Fuchs, and Georgia
Secretary of State General Counsel Ryan Germany:

1. That anywhere from 250,000 to 300,000 ballols were dropped mysteriously into the rolls
in the November 3, 2020, presidemial €lection in Georgia,

|~

That thousands of people attempted to vote in the November 3, 2020, presidential
clection in Georgia and were told they could not because a ballot had already been cast in
their name:

3. That 4,502 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in (Georgia who
were not on the voler registration 1ist;

4. That 904 people voted in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia who
were repistered at an address that was a post olfice box;

5. That Ruby Freeman was a professional vote scammer and a known political operative;
6. That Ruby Freeman, her daughter, and others were responsible for fraudulently awarding
at lzast 18,000 ballots to Joseph R, Biden at State Farm Arcna in the November 3, 2020,

presidential election in Georgia;

7. That close 1o 5,000 dead people veted in the November 3, 2020, presidential clection in
(eorgia;

8. That 139% of people voled in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Detroit;

9. That 200,000 more votcs were recorded than the number of people who voted in the
November 3, 2020, presidential election in Pennsylvania;

[{. That thousands of dead people voted in the November 3, 2024, presidential ¢lection in
Michigan;

1. That Ruby Freeman stuffed the ballot boxes:
12. That hundreds of thousands of ballots had been “dumped” into Fulten County and

another county adjacent 1o Fulton County in the November 3, 2020, presidential election
in Georpia;
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13, That he won the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgia by 400,000 votes;

said slatements being within the jurisdiction of the Ollice of the Georgia Seeretary of State and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation, departiments and agencies of state povernment, contrary 1o
the laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thergof;

COUNT 30 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the sitizens of Georgia, do
charpe and accuse STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT
FLOYD, and TREVIAN C. KUTTI with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT
SOLICITATION OF FALSE STATEMENTS AND WRITINGS, 0.C.C.A. §§ 16-4-8, 16-4-
7. & 16-16-290, for the said accused, individually and as persons concemed in the commission af
a crime, and topether with unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of
Georgia, on or about the 4th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired to solicit, request, and
imporiune Ruby Freeman, a Fulton Counlty, Georgla, election worker, to engage tn conduct
constiluting the felony offensc of False Statements and Writings, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, by
knowingly and wilifully making a falsc statement and representation concerning events at State
Farm Arcna in the Nevember 3, 20120, presidentizl election in Georgia, said statement and
representation being withm the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georpia Secretary of State and
the Georgia Burcau of Investipation, departments and agencies of state government, and county
and cily law enforcement ageneies, with inlent that said person engage in said conduct; and
TREVIAN C, KUTTT iraveled to Fulton County, Georgia, and placed a telephone call to Ruby
Freeman while in Fulton County, Georgia, which were overt acts to ¢flect the object of the
conapiracy, coatrary to the laws of said Siate, the good order, peace and dignity thereof,

COUNT 31 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesand, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse STEPHEN CLIFFGARD LEE, HARRISON WILLIAM PRESCOTT
FLOYD and TREVIAN C. KUTTI with the offensc of INFLUENCING WITNESSES,
0.C.G.A. § 16-10-93(b){1}({A), for the said accused, individually and as persons concemed in
the commission of a crime, and together with unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton
and Slate of Georgia, on or about the 4th day of January 2021, knowingly and unlawfully
engaged In misleading conduct toward Ruby Freeman, a Fulton Cownty, Georgla, clection
worker, by stating that she needed protection and by purporting to offer her help, with intent to
influence her lestimony in an official proceading in Fulton County, Georgia, concerning events
at State Fann Arena in the November 3, 2020, presidential election in Georgla, contrary to the
laws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thereof]
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COUNT 32 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georpia, do
charge and accuse SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
SCOTT GRAHAM HALL. and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT ELECTION FRALD, O.C.G.A. §8 21-2-603 & 21-2-566, for the said accused,
individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime. and together with
unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgla, on and between the Ist
day of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021, ynlaw(ully conspircd and agreed to
willfully tamper with ¢lectronic ballot markers and tabulating machines in the State of (Gieorgia;

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL entered inte & contract with SullivanStrickler
LI.CC in Fulton County, Georgia, delivered a payment to SullivanStrickler 1LL.C 1n Fullon County,
Georpia, and caused employees of SullivanStrickler LLC to travel from Fulton County, Georgia,
to Colfee County, Georgla, for Lhe purpose of willfully tampering with said elecirorue ballot
markers and tabulating machines, which were overl acls to effect the object of the conspiracy;

And CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM FHALL, and MISTY
HAMPTON aided, abetted, and encouraged employees ol SullivanStrckler I.LC in willfully
tampering with electronic hallot markers and tabulating machines while inside the Coffee County
Elections & Registration Office in Coffee County, Georgia, which were overt acts to effect the
object of the conspiracy, contrary to the laws of said State, the pood order, peace and dignity
thereof;
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COUNT 33 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aloresaid, in the name and behalf of the citivens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT ELECTION FRAUD., O.C.G.AL §§ 21-2-603 & 21-2-574, for the said accused,
mdividually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and topether with
unindicted co-conspitators, in the County of Fullon and State of Georgia, on and between the 1s¢
day of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired and apreed 1o
cause cerlain members of the conspiracy, who were not officers charged by law with the care of
ballots and who were not persons entrusled by any such officer with the care of ballots for a
purpase required by law, to possess official ballots pulside of the polling place in the State of

Georgia;

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL cntered into a contract with SullivanStrickler
LLC in Fulton County, Georgia, delivered a pavment to SullivanStrickler LLC in Fulton County,
(reorgia, and cavscd cmployees of SullivanStrickler |LLC to travel from Fulton County, Georgia,
to Coffee County, {zeorgia, for the purpose of causing cortain members of the conspiracy, who
were not officers charged by law with the care of ballots and who were nol persens entrusted by
any such officer with the care of ballots for a purpose required by law, to possess official ballots
outside of the polling place, which were overt acts to effect the object of the conspiracy,

And CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY
HAMPTON aided, abetted, and encouraged emplovees of SullivanStrickler LLC in accessmy
clection equipment while inside the Colfee County Elections & Regismation Oftice in Coffee
County, Georgia, for the purpose of causing certain members of the conspiracy, who were not
olficers charged by law with the eare of ballots and who were not persons entrusted by any such
alficer with the care of ballofs for a purpose required by law, to possess oflicial ballots outside of
the polling place, which were overt acts to elfect the object of the conspiracy, contrary to the
Jlaws of said State, the good order, peace and dignity thereof,
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COUNT 34 of 41

And the Grand Turors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
SCOTT GRAIHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT COMPUTER THEFT, 0.C.G.A. §§ 16-4-8 & 16-9-93(a), for the said accused,
individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and together with
unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on and between the 1st
day of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired to use a
compuler with knenwledge that such use was without authority and with the intention of taking
and appropriating information, dala, and software, the property of Dominion Voting Systems
Corporation,

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL entered into a contract with SullivanStrickler
I.I.C in Fulton County, Georgia, delivered a payment to SullivanStrickler LLC in Fulton County,
Georpia, and caused empiovees of SullivanSirickler LLC to travel from Fulton County, Georgia,
to Collee County, Georgia, for the purpose of using a computer with knowledge that such use
was without authority and with the intention ot taking and appropriating information, datw, and
soltware, the properly of Dominion Voting Systems Corporation, which werc overt acts to effect
the object of the conspiracy;

And CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY
HAMPTOMN aided, abetted, and encouraged emplovees of SullivanStrickler LLC in using a
computer with knowledge that such use was without anthotity and with the intention of taking
and appropriating information, data, und software, the property of Dominion Voting Systems
Corporation, while inside the Coffee County Elections & Registration Office in Coffes County,
CGreorgla, which were overl acts 1o effect the object of the conspiracy, conlrary to the laws of said
Slate, the good order, peace and dignily thercof;
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COINT 35 of 41

And the Grand Qurors aforesald, in the name and behall of the citizens of Georgia, do
charpe and accuse SIDNEY KATHFERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
S5COTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT COMPUTER TRESPASS, 0.C.G.A. §8§ 164-8 & 16-9-93(b), [or the said accused,
individually and as persons cencecmed in the commission of a crime, and together with
unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fulton and State of Georpia, on and between the 1st
iy of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired to use a
compuier with knowledpe that such use was without authority and with the intention of removing
voter data and Dominion Voting Systems Corporation data from said computer,

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL cntered into a contract with SullivanStrickler
LL.C in Fulton County, (teorgia, delivered a payment to SullivanStrickler 1.1.C in Fulton County,
Georgia, and caused employees of SullivanStrickler LLC to travel from Fulion Counly, Georgia,
1o Coflee County, Georgia, for the purpose of using a computer with knowledge that such use
was without authority and with the intention of removing voter dala and Dominion Voting
Systems Corporation data from said computer, which were overt acts to effect the object of the
conspiracy,

And CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY
HAMPTON aided, abetted, and encouraged employces of SullivanStrickler L1C in using a
computer with knowledpe that such vse was without authority and with the intention of removing
voter data and Dominion Voting Systems Corporation dala from said compuler, while inside the
Coffiee County Elections & Registration Office in Colfee County. Georgia, which were overn
acts to etlect the object of the conspiracy, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order,
peace and dignity thereof
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COUNT 36 0f 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
S5COTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT COMPUTER INVASION OF PRIVACY, O.C.GG. A, §§ 16-4-8 & 16-9-93(¢), for
the said accused, individually and as persons concerned in the commission of a crime, and
together with unindicted co-conspirators, in the County of Fullon and State of Georgia, on and
berween the 1st day of December 2020 and the 7th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired
to use a computer with the intention of examining personal voter data with knowledge that such
examination was without authority;

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL entered into a contract with SullivanStrickler
L.LLC in Fulton County, Georgia, delivered a payment to SullivanStrickler LLIC in Fulton County,
Georgia, and caused emplovees of SullivanStrickler T.1.C to travel from Fulton County, Georgia,
i CofTee County, Georgia, for the purpose of using a computer with the intention of examining
personal voter data with knowledge that such examination was without authority, which wers
overl acts to effect the object of the conspiracy:

And CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY
HAMPTON aided, abetted, and encouraged employees of SullivanSirickler I.LLC in using a
computer with the intention of examining personal voler data with knowledge that such
examination was without autherity, while inside the Cotlee County Elections & Regsiration
Ofice in CofTes County, Georgia, which were overt acts to effect the object of the conspiracy,
confracy to the laws of said State, the pood order, peace and dignity thereof;
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COUNT 37 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georpia, do
charge and accuse SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL, CATHLEEN ALSTON LATHAM,
SCOTT GRAHAM HALIJ., and MISTY HAMPTON with the offense of CONSPTRACY TO
DEFRAUD THE STATE, O.C.G.A_ § 16-10-21, for the said accused, individually and as
persens concerned in the commission of 4 crime, and together wath unindicted co-conspirators, in
the County of Fulton and Stale of Geargia. on and berween the 1st day of December 2020 and
the 7th day of January 2021, unlawfully conspired and agreed to comumit theft of voter dala,
property which was under the control of Georgia Secrelary of State Brad Raffensperger, a state
officer, in his official capacity;

And SIDNEY KATHERINE POWELL cntcred into a contract with Sullivandtockler
LLC in Fullon County, Georgia, delivered a payment o SullivanStrickler LLC in Fulton County,
Georgia, and caused employees of SullivanStrickler LIC to travel from Fullon County, Georgia,
to Coffee County, Geergia, for the purpose of committing theft of voter data, property which was
under the control of Georgin Scerctary of State Brad Raffensperger, a state officer, in his official
capacity, which were overt acts to effect the object of the conspiracy;

And CATIILEEN ALSTON LATHAM, SCOTT GRAHAM HALL, and MISTY
HAMPTON aided, abetled, and encouraped employees of SullivanStrickler LIC in acecssing
clection equipment while inside the Coffee County Ulections & Registration Office in Nouglas,
Georgla, for the pumpose of commutling thelt of voler dula, property which was under the control
of Georgia Secrelary of State Brad Rallensperger, a state officer, in his oflicial capacity, which
were overl acts to effect the object of the canspiracy, contrary to the laws of said State, the good
order, peace and dignity thereof]

COUNT 38 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP with the olfense of SOLICITATION OF
VIOLATION OF OATH BY PUBLIC OFFICER, (0.C.G A, 85 16-4-7 and 16-10-1, for the
said accused, in the County of Fulton and State of Georgia, on or about the 17th day of
September 2021, unlawfully solicited, requested, and imporiuned Georgia Secrelary of State
Brad Raffensperger, a public officer, to engage in conduct constituting the felony offense of
Vialation of Oath by Public Officer, O.C.(7 A. § 16-10-1, by unlawfully “decerifying the
Election, or whatever the correct legal remedy is, and ammounee the true winner,” in wallful and
intentional violation of the terms of the cath of said person as prescribed by law, with intenl that
said person engage in said conduct, contrary o the laws of said Starwe, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof;
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COUNT 39 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, inthe name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DONALD JOHN TRUMP with the offense of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and
Stale of Georgia, on or about the 17th day of September 2021, knowingly, willfully, and
unlawfully made the following false statermnent and representation to Georgia Secretary of State
Brad Raffensperger:

1. *As smted to you previcusly, the number of false andfor irregular voles 1s far greater than
needed to change the Geergia election resul{™;

sald statement being within the jurisdiction of the Office of the Georgia Secrelary of $tate and
the Georgia Bureau of Investigatien, depariments and agencies of slate goverrunent, and county
and city [aw enforcement ageneics, contrary to the laws of said State, the good order, peace and
dignity thereof,

COUNT 41) of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in (the name and behalf of the citizens of Georgia, do
charge and accuse DAYID JAMES SHAFER with the offensc of FALSE STATEMENTS
AND WRITINGS, 0.C.G. A, § 16-10-20, for the said accused, in the County of Fulton and
State of Geonuia, on or aboul the 25th day of April 2022, knowingly, willfully, and unlawhally
made at least one of the following falsc statements and representations in the prescnce of Fulton
County District Attomey’s Officc investigators:

1. That he “attended and convened” the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential
¢lector nominecs in Fulton County, Georgia, but that he did not “call each of the
individual members and netify them of the meeting or make any of the olher preparations
necessary ior the mecting”;

2. That a court reporter was not present at the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump
presidential elector nominees in Fulten County, Georgia;

said stalements being within the jurisdiction of the Fulton County District Attorney's Office, a

departiment and agency of the government of a county of this state, contrary lo the laws of said
Slate, the good order, peace and dignity thoercof;
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COUNT 41 of 41

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, in the name and behalf of the cilizens of Georgia, do

charge and accuse ROBERT DAVID CHEELEY with the oftfense of FERJURY, 0.C.G.A. §
16-10-70(a}. for the said accused, in the County of Fulion and State of Georpia, on or about the
15tk day of September 2022, knowingly, willfully, and unlawhilly made at icast one of the
following false statements before the Fulton County Special Purpose Grand Jury. a judicial
proceeding, afier having been administered a lawful oath:

l.

bk

That he was unaware of the December 14, 2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector
nominees in Fulton County, Georpla, until afier the meeting had already taken place;

That he had no subsiamive conversations with anyone concerning the December 14,
2020, meeting of Trump presidential elector nominees in Fulton County, Georgia, until
aller the meeting had already taken place;

That he never suggested to anyone that the Trump presidential elector nominees in
(Greorgia should mect on December 14, 2020

That the only communication he had with John Fastman conceming the November 3,
2020, presidential election was for the purpose of connceting Fastman to Georgia Senator
Drandon Deach and unindicted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose identity 13 known to
the Grand Jury, for possible legal representation;

That he never worked to connect John FEastman with any Georgia legislators other than
(reorgia Senator Brandon Beach and unindreted co-conspirator Individual 8, whose
identity 15 known to the Grand Jury;

said statements being material to the aceused’s own involvement in the December 14, 2020,
meeting ol Trump presidential elector nominges in Fulton County, Georgia, and to the accused’s
communications with others involved in said meeting, the ssues in question, contmary o0 the laws
of sard State, the pood order, peace and dignity thereof,

FANI T. WILLIS, District Attorney
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WITNESS LIST
Asst. Chief Inv. M. Hill -FCDA DA14

S8t [nv. T. Swanson-Lucas - FCDADATZ
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